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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.

BERBEXZMERATA (BRI GEMEE

GEME Y - IRMEEREMERXALTNATATAASKRERBNTNEQATARE-—FEALTNTES - BRER
ENATETHRENZELANETRR  IERSBFEAFNEBRSFELRERE -

HRGEMLT AT -—RABPNELF  EGEMEENRSZTHEBRNEIREEZEFEAZIRANTE R EA
B BRELIREBEGEMEENESSASRBERNTS

IR ) EH 538 FE (B PTGEMEE %5 _E T A AI) (|GEM L AR R T &L - B HEHE B B B 5 B () B IR 2
AI[ARBI)EYEN « AR FIRIEF([EF) B AR E A ERZF RS A ELEHEE - EEFEIEL —1]
BEBHE  BAREFHRIE A REFEENEEEZ T MY EEETH  RERGIREFK D AWE
EREARMER  EUSHANBEE R AR S ELRE -



Corporate Information

NAER

Chairman’s Statement

TERE

Management Discussion and Analysis
SR E S

Biographical Details of Directors

EXREHE

Report of the Directors
EERE

Corporate Governance Report
hEERRE

Independent Auditors’ Report
B ZEA RS

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
mreBmkEMEERER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AP BRRR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgPR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBReRER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M ISR R

Five Year Financial Summary

hFEMBHHE

16

20

31

51

60

62

64

66

68

188



CORPORATE INFORMATION
NGRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hung Yuen Kin (Appointed on 16 October 2019)

Li Ka Yee Daphne (Appointed on 16 October 2019)

Tang Yau Sing (Resigned on 6 November 2019)

Wong Siu Hung Patrick (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)

Non-executive Director

Lui Man Wah (Chairman) (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Chen Xiao (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 20 May 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wong Chi Ling (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Wong Ling Yan Philip (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Lee Man Yeung (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Tsang Zee Ho Paul (Resigned on 6 November 2019)
Wang Yan (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)
Lau Fai Lawrence (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)
Tse Chi Wai (Resigned on 31 May 2019)
Wen Kai (Resigned on 31 May 2019)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Hung Yuen Kin (Appointed on 6 November 2019)

Wong Siu Hung Patrick (Appointed on 15 May 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)

Tang Yau Sing (Resigned on 15 May 2019)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Hung Yuen Kin (Appointed on 6 November 2019)
Li Ka Yee Daphne (Appointed on 6 November 2019)
Tang Yau Sing (Resigned on 6 Novermber 2019)
Yu Ngai (Appointed on 3 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 Novermber 2019)
Sin Kin Hong Edward (Resigned on 3 April 2019)

REIRIE (R2019E 105 16 H EZ (F)
ERER2019F 10 16 HEZ(T)
BHE B (201911 A6 H BHE)
=DM (R2019F4 16 HEZ (T
WR20194F 11 H6H BEHF)

FHTES

B3 () (R20194E 105 16 HEZE (F)
BREE (R2019F4 156 HEZ(F
WR20194F5 A 20H BEF)

BAUFHTES

BT (R2019F 10 16 HEZ(F)
BEB(R2019F 105 16 HEZ(F)
ENHE(R20194F 105 16 HEZE (F)
% B (R2019F 11 H6HBHE)
FGF (R2019F4 156 HEZ T
FR2019F 11 A6 H BHE)
BI2E (R2019F4 A 15 HEZ (T
FR2019 11 H6H BHE)
BB (R201945 531 H BHE)
ML (201945 A31 HBHE)

BREME

BEIR 2 (R2019F 11 H6H EZ(T)

=AU (R2019F5 15 HEZ (T
FR2019F 11 H6H BHE)

BB B (R201945 4 15 H BEHE)

RERR

RER R (R2019F 11 H6HEZATE)
TRER2019F11 H6HEZ(T)
BB B (R2019F 11 A6 HBHE)
R (R2019F4H3HEZ (T
IR20194F 11 A6 H BEHF)
YRR (R 20194 A3 H BHT)

2 WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019



COMPANY SECRETARY

Yu Ngai (Appointed on 3 April 2019)
Sin Kin Hong Edward (Resigned on 3 April 2019)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Wong Chi Ling (Chairlady)
Wong Ling Yan Philip
Lee Man Yeung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Wong Ling Yan Philip (Chairman)
Lui Man Wah

Wong Chi Ling

Lee Man Yeung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Lui Man Wah (Chairman)
Wong Chi Ling

Wong Ling Yan Philip
Lee Man Yeung

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE &
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Lui Man Wah (Chairman)
Wong Chi Ling

Wong Ling Yan Philip
Lee Man Yeung

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Workshop A, 14th Floor
V Ga Building

532 Castle Peak Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NG

REWE

RER(R2019F4H3HEZE(F)
BERER (R 201994 5 3H BFHTE)

BEREEE
"R EE)
FF
FMEES
BEBR(EE)
B EE
BTR
FF
REZEES
BXEERE)
BTR
FF

HMMBEERTEERBE

BEBENEE
&1L 53258
FEEKNE
14REAE

“E-NFFR EHEE (ER) ARAF 3



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Board of directors (the “Directors”) of Winto Group
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 to our shareholders
and investors.

2019 was a year with full of changes. After the change in
management of the Group in November 2019, the Group has
obtained the exclusive right to publish and distribute Exmoo News
and Travel Macao. The publications were sold or distributed
through the network of an independent third party business
partner covering various districts of Hong Kong and Macau. As at
the date of this annual report, the number of distribution points of
Exmoo News are 641 in Macau covering commercial buildings,
luxury apartments, banks, airport and lounge, ports, petrol kiosk,
food centre, car parks, schools and governmental offices, etc.,
and the daily circulation reaches about 50,000 copies, which
is one of the highest circulation and wide coverage in Macau,
whereas Travel Macao are distributed in major terminals in Hong
Kong and Macau as well as certain hotels in Macau. In addition,
Exmoo News and Travel Macao provide website version, mobile
apps and digital social media platforms such as Facebook page,
WeChat platform and Youtube channel to satisfy different needs
of the readers.

The financial performance of the Group has been improved
remarkably since November 2019, for the year ended 31
December 2019, the revenue generated from the publications
and media advertising business amounted to approximately
HK$7,498,000, representing a significant increase as compared
to last year.

Looking forward to 2020, the customers’ spending sentiments
in advertisement had weakened after the social turmoil in Hong
Kong and the current coronavirus outbreak, the Group will pay
close attention to the uncertainties in the economic environment,
and stay alert to formulate strategies to pursue steady
development and strive for generous returns to our shareholders.

On behalf of the board, | would like to take this opportunity to
thank our directors, our dedicated management and staff for
their wavering support and commitment. We would also like to
express our gratitude for the continuing support and trust of our
shareholders, business partners, readers and customers. We
hope to join hands with each other to achieve improvements and
deliver success continuously.

Lui Man Wah
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Continuing Operation

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$20,605,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing an increase of approximately 39% or HK$5,820,000
from approximately HK$14,785,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018. The Group recorded total gross profit of
approximately HK$9,204,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing an increase approximately HK$5,839,000
from approximately HK$3,365,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018. The Group’s net loss increase to approximately
HK$39,476,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
approximately HK$38,681,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018. Loss per share of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 was approximately HK$9 cents. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in (i) sales and distribution
of publications, and the sales of print and online advertising
spaces, and (i) promotion of products and services by organizing
exhibitions and shows.

Publications and Media Advertising Business

During the year, The Group owned and published six publications,
including Exmoo News, Travel Macao, Motoz Trader, Motoz
Trader (Free), Shopping Monthly (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine),
Shopping Monthly (Free) (a 2-in-1 dual cover magazine).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The publications of the Group cover readership of different
market segments and age groups by focusing on different areas
of interests in lifestyle, including automotive, beauty and fashion,
property, dining and electronic products.

o Exmoo News is a Chinese-language daily newspaper
(published every Monday to Friday) published in Macau
which covers a wide range of readership by focusing
on different areas including Macau daily local as well as
Hong Kong, the PRC and international news, finance and
economy, entertainment, sports, fashion and lifestyle,
cultural knowledge, etc. As at the date of this annual report,
the number of distribution points of the newspaper are 641
in Macau covering commercial buildings, luxury apartments,
banks, airport and lounge, ports, petrol kiosk, food centre,
car parks, universities and governmental offices, etc. and
the daily circulation reaches about 50,000 copies, which is
one of the highest circulation and wide coverage in Macau.

° Travel Macao is a Chinese-language travel leisure
fortnightly magazine (published alternate Friday) published
in Macau which provides comprehensive information to
readers relating to travel, dining, shopping, culture and
entertainment in Macau. It is distributed in major terminals in
Hong Kong and Macau as well as certain hotels in Macau.
In addition to the printed magazine distributed in Macau and
Hong Kong, Travel Macao also provides website version,
digital social media platforms such as Facebook page and
WeChat platform to readers.

° Motoz Trader is a fortnightly magazine that focuses on new
car models, second-hand car market and properties while
also provides lifestyle information including dinning, fashion
and beauty.

° Motoz Trader (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that is
extracted from Motoz Trader.

° Shopping Monthly is fortnightly magazine and focuses on
updated information on consumer products.

° Shopping Monthly (Free) is a free fortnightly magazine that
is magazine extracted from Shopping Monthly.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue generated
from the publications and media advertising business amounted
to approximately HK$7,498,000, increased from approximately
HK$1,311,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

Exhibition and Trade Show Business

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the revenue
generated from the exhibition and trade show business amounted
to approximately HK$13,107,000, slightly decreased from
approximately HK$13,475,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2020, the Group will pay close attention to
the uncertainties in the economic environment, and stay alert to
formulate strategies to pursue steady development and strive for
generous returns to our shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Continuing Operations
Revenue

Total revenue increased by approximately 39% from
approximately HK$14,785,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately HK$20,605,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019. It was mainly due to the Group extended its
business sector geographically to Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area. The revenue generated from publications
and media advertising business increased approximately
HK$6,220,000 as compared with approximately HK$1,311,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The revenue of the Group contributed from the exhibition and
trade show business, amounted to approximately HK$13,107,000
or 64% of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the cost of sales of the
exhibition and trade show and publications and media advertising
business amounted to approximately HK$9,189,000 or 81% and
approximately HK$2,212,000 or 19% respectively of the total
cost of sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross Profit

The gross profit of the exhibition and trade show business,
represented approximately HK$3,918,000 for the current year.

Due to the expansion of publications and media advertising
business extended, the gross profit generated from the
publications and media advertising business increased from gross
loss of approximately HK$953,000 in last year to gross profit of
approximately HK$5,286,000 in the current year.

Other Income

Other income mainly represented the interest income arising from
loan receivables during the year and other income decreased
from approximately HK$521,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 to approximately HK$88,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Operating Expenses

The operating expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 9% from approximately HK$26,889,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$24,379,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease in the
operating expenses was mainly due to effective cost control on
administrative expenses.

Other Gains or Losses

The other gains or losses represented a net loss of approximately
HK$262,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, mainly
consisted of the disposal loss of a subsidiary.

Impairment Loss Recognised Under Expected Credit Loss
Model

As at 31 December 2019, impairment loss of approximately
HK$22,710,000 is recognised on trade and other receivables
and loan receivables. Details are disclosed in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Finance Costs

Finance costs of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$1,541,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, compared
to HK$121,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
increase in finance costs was mainly due to interest paid to an
independent third party borrower.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

Income Tax (Expense) Credit

Income tax expense for the Group was approximately
HK$174,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, compared
to the income tax credit of approximately HK$22,000 for the last
year.

Loss from Continuing Operation Attributable to Owners of
the Company

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s loss
attributable to owners of the Company increased to approximately
HK$38,901,000 from approximately HK$37,464,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018. This was mainly attributable to (i)
impairment loss recognised under expected credit loss model;
and (ii) increase in finance costs.

Discontinued Operation
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the financial results
of mobile apps development business segment was classified as
the discontinued operation.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Fris® (Fx) 8%

KREBEZE2019F12A31B L FEER TSR
X 49174,0008 7 =EFEFMEHREBRBL
22,0005 7T °

AR AFEEARGEEE R BN E R

REE2019F12A31 B ILFE - ZXAREAE A
FEEAEEEEAEZ2018F12A31HIEFE
#937,464,000/8 7T - = %738,901,000/8 7T °
TEEHRNEHEEBEEX TERNRE
B8 ¢ R (i) E R AIE N -

BRI ER
REZE2019F12A31BIEFE » RBERRE
NERESDBUBEER D BARIEEE
%% o

TEBEE  BBEERRELRFE

REZE2019F12A31HIEFE » AEBRHEAR
RIBWEEE) -

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets mENEE 13,376,508 23,096,231
Current liabilities R aE 18,454,235 21,252,108
Current ratio )R 0.7 1.1

The current ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately 0.7 times as compared to approximately 1.1 times
as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$3,603,000 (2018: approximately
HK$10,687,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings
over shareholders’ fund, was approximately -168% as at 31
December 2019 (2018: 52%).

Trade Receivables Turnover Days

The trade receivables increased from approximately
HK$2,359,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$3,021,000 for the year ended 31 December
2019, but the trade receivable turnover days decreased from
approximately 58 days for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately 54 days for the year ended 31 December 2019.
All outstanding trade receivable balances are reviewed by the
Group’s sales and marketing department on a monthly basis to
ensure that any overdue receivable is promptly monitored and
appropriate collection actions are taken.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by
performing ongoing credit evaluation of the financial conditions
of its clients. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its
funding requirements.

Significant Investments Held

During the year ended 31 December 2019, saved for the equity
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income,
there was no other significant investment held by the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
other plans for material investments and capital assets.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group completed
the disposal of 51% equity interests in Qihui Group (International)
Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material
pledge of assets.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments.

Information on Employees

As at 31 December 2019, the employee headcount (not including
Directors) of the Group was 32 (2018: 19) and the total staff
costs, including Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2019, amounted to approximately HK$11,934,000
(2018: approximately HK$8,496,000).

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry practice. In order to attract and
retain valuable employees, the Group reviews the performance
of its employees annually and such review results will be taken
into account while having the annual salary review and promotion
appraisal. In addition to a basic salary, bonuses would be paid
to staff with reference to the financial performance of the Group.
The Group would also provide trainings or seminars that relating
to publication business and offer options that may be granted
to the employees under the share option scheme. The Group
pays commission to its sales and marketing staff which was
calculated based on an agreed percentage of sharing specified
in their respective contracts in accordance of the total monthly
sales solicited by such staff which is arrived at mutual agreement
between the Company and the respective staff.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure that the
Company maintains a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system. The Group’s internal control
system is designed and established to ensure that assets are
safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules
and regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance
with relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting
requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed. Review of
the Group’s internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions.
The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, as they
are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives.

The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defence, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are with in the acceptable
range and that the first line of defence is effective. As the final
line of defence, the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
Committee of the Company, ensures that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

Risk Management
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca same as
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk which
materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

In current year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate other borrowings.

The Group is not expect any significant interest rate risk which
materially affect the Group’s results of operations in 2019 and
2018.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterals, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting period,
the Group has concentration of credit risk as 23% (2018: 24%)
of the total trade receivables of the Company was due from
the largest customer and 51% (2018: 73%) of the total trade
receivables of the Group was due from the largest five customers.
Taking into accounts the creditworthiness of the customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of bad debts, the
directors consider that such concentration of credit risk would
not result in significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on bank balance is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the event after the reporting period are disclosed in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEEFRT

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yuen Kin, aged 39, has over 10 years of experience
in media and advertisement industries. He obtained a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Journalism and Communication from Chu Hai
University in 2005.

Mr. Hung was appointed as a deputy managing director of Macau
Federal Commercial Association of Convention & Exhibition
Industry in September 2019 until 2021. He served as a media
production director of Central — Companhia de Communicacao
International, LDA, a company incorporated in Macau, which
is principally engaged in media, advertisement and exhibition
business from April 2019 to September 2019. He served as a
business development director of Pentalker Studio Publication
Co., Ltd., which is a book publisher providing cultural and travel
information in Macau from July 2016 to April 2019. He also
served as a deputy editor-in-chief of “NEW GEN. Monthly” of New
Generation Culture Association from June 2017 to July 2018. He
was also an editor in chief of Central International Communication
Co, Ltd, which is principally engaged in media, advertisement
and exhibition business from June 2011 to July 2016. Mr.
Hung served as an editor of Wide Connection Limited (being a
subsidiary of New Media Group Holdings Limited, now known
as Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 708), which was principally
engaged in magazine publishing, from April 2010 to June 2011.
He also served as an editor in chief of Prefix Publication Limited,
which is a book publisher providing travel, leisure, lifestyle and
cultural information in Hong Kong from March 2009 to April 2010.

Ms. Li Ka Yee Daphne, aged 44, has over 20 years of
experience in strategic marketing and advertising industry for
advertising and public relations companies.

Ms. Li served as a marketing director of Companhia de Group
UO Limited, which is principally engaged in e-commerce, media
and publishing, travel and leisure and information technology, in
June 2018. She served as a senior account director of McCann
Worldgroup Hong Kong Limited, a marketing services company,
from January 2018 to February 2018, mainly responsible
for relationship management of accounts and performance
marketing. She also served as an account director of NDN
Group (HK) Limited, which is a digital marketing agency in Hong
Kong from August 2016 to November 2017, mainly responsible
for accounts retention and agency business development. She
served as a director of Shanghai Ogilvy & Mather Marketing
Communications Consulting Co., Ltd., which is a public relation
agency in Shanghai, from May 2004 to October 2014 mainly
responsible for strategic public relations planning and counselling.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lui Man Wah, aged 37, obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in business studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2004 and obtained a Master of Commerce degree
from Macquarie University in 2005. Mr. Lui has over 10 years
of experience in securities and financial institutions. He is
experienced in managing listed companies in Hong Kong.

Since 13 August 2013, Mr. Lui has been appointed as an
executive director of Sun International Group Limited (“Sun
International”) (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 8029), whose principal businesses included
money lending business and provision of securities and futures
brokerage, margin financing and asset management. He is mainly
responsible for overall management and investment strategy. In
addition, Mr. Lui has been serving as the chief executive officer
and an executive director of Sun International Securities Limited
(“SISL”) and Sun International Asset Management Limited
(“SIAML”) respectively since 29 January 2016, both of which
are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Sun International.
SISL is principally engaged in the provision of type 1 (dealing
in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) and type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO in Hong
Kong, while SIAML is principally engaged in the provision of type
4 (advising on securities), type 5 (advising on futures contracts)
and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO in Hong Kong. He is mainly responsible for the day-to-day
operations of SISL and SIAML.

Furthermore, Mr. Lui had served as an executive director of
Imperium Group Global Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 776) from
October 2012 to July 2013, which is principally engaged in (i)
the investment and operation in energy and natural resources
(including precious metals) related projects and services; and (ii)
the provision of loan financing and investment and management
consultation services in the PRC. He was also appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Suncity Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1383) from February 2012 to
July 2012. From January 2010 to October 2010, Mr. Lui was a
representative of Cinda International Securities Limited. From
December 2008 to June 2009, he was a representative of Polaris
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEEFRT

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Chi Ling, aged 48, possesses over 25 years of
experience in finance, accounting and company secretarial
services experience in Hong Kong. She obtained a master
degree of arts in parent education and a professional diploma in
guidance and counselling from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a postgraduate diploma in early childhood education from
The Hong Kong Baptist University and a bachelor degree of
arts in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Ms. Wong is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a fellow member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
an associate member of Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Wong is currently the group financial controller of RNP
Jewelry Design Limited, which engages in the trading and
manufacturing of jewelry products, since March 2015. Ms. Wong
is responsible for corporate accounting, finance and corporate
secretarial matters. Ms. Wong worked in H.C. Wong & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising), responsible for providing
corporate secretarial services from August 2007 to March 2015,
with her last positions as senior manager. She served as an
accounting officer Il of the government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region from April 1997 to May 2007. She also
served as an accounting manager of Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited from September 1996 to April 1997 and a
staff accountant at Ernst & Young from August 1994 to August
1996.

Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip, aged 39, has over 10 years of
experience in management and business operation. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and obtained
a Master Degree of Business Administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2010. Mr. Wong is currently the chief
executive officer of YOOV Internet Technology Limited (“YOOV”),
which specialize in providing cloud-based enterprise resource
planning (ERP) solutions to small and medium-sized enterprises
(SME), since January 2016. Prior to the formation of YOOV, Mr.
Wong operated a number of English learning centres in Hong
Kong from December 2012 to December 2016. He also served
as an operations manager of Nan Fung Resources Limited from
March 2012 to November 2012. He worked in the Real Estate
Asia Division of Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Hong Kong branch) from
July 2007 to March 2011 with his last position as real estate
relationship manager.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Man Yeung, aged 42, has over 13 years of experience
in business management in the construction industry. Mr. Lee
obtained a certificate in Business Administration and a diploma
in Business Management (Banking & Finance) from Holmesglen
Institute of TAFE in Melbourne, Australia in May 1999 and August
2000 respectively. Mr. Lee worked at Hang Tat Engineering
Company Limited as a project manager from 2003 to 2010. He
was the business owner of APEX Construction & Development
Limited from September 2008 to May 2015. He is the founder
and has been a director of Le Point Management Company
Limited, a company principally engaged in the business of
management of restaurants and hospitality group in China since
January 2015. Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive director
of Pak Wing Group (Holdings) Limited (a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8316) since September
2018. He is also an engineering consultant of Chilego Engineering
Co., Limited since December 2010.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this
Report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules since their appointment on 16 October 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development and
possible risk and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in
Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report respectively. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s business
operation made continuous effort on minimizing damage to
the environment and ensuring employee well-being. No non-
compliance in relation to environmental and social aspects was
recorded. Engagement with stakeholders has resulted in raised
concerns on key material issues, which include (i) employee
health and safety, (i) labour standards, (iii) intellectual property
(“IP”) rights, (iv) customer data protection and (v) anti-corruption.
These aspects had already been managed by the Group and
the Group will continue to keep close communication with
its stakeholders for advancing its environmental, social and
governance management.

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be
published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this
annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Group covering the same period
are set out in the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 188 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to the shareholders.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 55% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
20%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 42% of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 18%.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the year
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding
company or any subsidiary of such ultimate holding company a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Hung Yuen Kin (Appointed on 16 October 2019)

Li Ka Yee Daphne (Appointed on 16 October 2019)

Tang Yau Sing (Resigned on 6 November 2019)

Wong Siu Hung Patrick (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)

Non-executive Director

Lui Man Wah (Chairman) (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Chen Xiao (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 20 May 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wong Chi Ling (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Wong Ling Yan Philip (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Lee Man Yeung (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Tsang Zee Ho Paul (Resigned on 6 November 2019)
Wang Yan (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)
Lau Fai Lawrence (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)
Tse Chi Wai (Resigned on 31 May 2019)
Wen Kai (Resigned on 31 May 2019)

In accordance with Article 83(3), Mr. Hung Yuen Kin, Ms. Li
Ka Yee Daphne, Mr. Lui Man Wah, Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr.
Wong Ling Yan Philip and Mr. Lee Man Yeung will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (‘AGM”) and, all of them,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out
on pages 16 to 19 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

All independent non-executive Directors have entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company under which their term of
appointment is three years.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary
of such ultimate holding company was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or an entity connected with the Director
was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
during or at the end of the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme disclosed in section “Share
Option Scheme” in this report and Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
Disposal of Qihui Group (International) Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell, and the
independent third party agreed to purchase the entire equity of
Qihui Group (International) Limited (“Qihui”). This disposal was
completed during the year.

Save as disclosed, there is no other material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

There was in existence during the year ended 31 December 2019
a management contract (the “Management Contract”) dated 23
March 2018 between the Company and Able Secretarial Services
Limited (“Able”), whereby Able agreed to provide financial
reporting, human resources, accounting and administrative
services to the Group for an amount of HK$40,000 per month.
The Management Contract was terminated on 30 June 2019. Mr.
Tang Yau Sing, a resigned executive Director of the Company,
was interested in the Management Contract as his spouse is a
director of Able.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management remuneration,
having regard to market competitiveness, individual performance
and achievement. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible participants,
details of the scheme is set out in section “Share Option
Scheme” in this report and Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group adopted the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 16 February 2015, under which the Directors may
grant options to eligible persons to subscribe for the Company’s
shares, subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The Share Option Scheme will expire on 16 February 2025.

As at 16 October 2019, all of the share options granted have
been cancelled.
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A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
Movements of share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year are set out below:

B ENE BRI EH NG S P HRE
MIFES7 - FRRBEBEE SR D NBIRES
BEFIT

Balance Balance
as at Granted  Cancelled as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Grantees Date of Grant price Exercise period 2019 the year the year 2019
R20195 R20195
1A1H 12A318
ABA REBH THE TE8 2% RERRE RERDZH 28R
Former Directors
HES
Tsang Zee Ho 13 April 2018 HK$1.3 31 April 2018 to 360,000 - (360,000) -
Paul (resigned on 16 February 2025
6 November
2019)
2 BR(R20196 2018F 471308 1387  2018F4A31H
11 A6REHT) 22025%F2A16H
Tse Chi Wai 13 April 2018 HK$1.3 31 April 2018 to 360,000 - (360,000) -
(resigned on 16 February 2025
31 May 2019)
MEEM2019F  2018%4A13R 1381 2018%F4A31H
5A31 B L) 22025%2A16H
Wen Kai (resigned 13 April 2018 HK$1.3 31 April 2018 to 360,000 - (360,000) -
on 31 May 2019) 16 February 2025
E5L (20196 2018F 47138 13870 2018F4A31H
5A31 B EHfL) 22025F2A16H
Other
Hith
Other 13 April 2018 HK$1.3 31 April 2018 to 6,360,000 - (6,360,000) -
Optionholders 16 February 2025
HivfiREREA  2018%54A13R 13587  2018F4A318
F2025F2H16H
Notes: B
1. The Share Options were/will be vested in four tranches with each 1. BERED EHMELEE - &85 B REMRH

tranche covering one-fourth of the relevant Options and the 1st, 2nd,
3rd and 4th tranche were/will be exercisable from 13 April 2018, 13
October 2018, 13 April 2019 and 13 October 2019 respectively to 16
February 2025.

2. The number of options and exercise price above is after the effect
of share consolidation as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

For other details, please refer to note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors, the
controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective close
associates has any business or interest that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interests which any such person has or may have with the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or which were, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules, required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(A) Interest in Shares of the Company

ESHRE

EERERBRRRGFXBHERS

AEFEMA - MEEF - AR AIEBRBRREM
EXRANETHEAREEMEAREXKE
PR A BE R B R RS S s - TR
RS AT BEE AR A R A TR A B 2 RfF
EREAMAFISER o

EERIETBAERAQAHEM
BETENRE - MBEROREEEN
BER /AR

R2019F 128318 » EERFBITHRAENRA
NEHEEAEEEE(E& BB AR ES571
ERFRHEKRO([#FHREBE KRS ])FEXVED)
WAk - HERO REEBEFEEREEZESR
HEIRGIEXVEBETRSD BEHNE AR A K
BRXAMER AR (BEREREES X
B R0 A BRSO E (ESR BB B e ook
B HIREBEEBESF R ERAIEISMEBRAR
AFEZELMARENER AR - HIRE
GEM MR AIES.46E5.67I6BME AN T &
BT ROABIAT ¢

[N

(A) RAEDBRADBIES

Approximate
percentage of
issued Share

Capital of
Name of Director Capacity Interest in Shares the Company
ERARE BT
EEpR 14 REROHNERZ REASNESHL
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Notes:

1. Mr. Lui Man Wah is the ultimate beneficial owner of these
Shares, of which Shares is directly held by Source Creation
International Limited (“Source Creation”). The entire issued share
capital of Source Creation are wholly owned by Mr. Lui Man
Wah.

2. Duplication occurs in respect of the interests held by Mr. Lui
Man Wah and Source Creation which they represented the same
block of Shares.

3. As at 31 December 2019, the Company has 432,000,000
Shares in issue.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.
(B) Interests in Share Options of the Company

Details of the particulars of interests (all being personal
interests) in share options held during the year ended
31 December 2019 by Directors (and/or their respective
associate(s)) of the Company to subscribe for Shares of
the Company granted/exercisable under the share option
scheme of the Company are disclosed in the section “Share
Option Scheme” of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors nor chief executives had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or were otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had or were deemed or taken to have the following
interests and/or short positions in the shares or the underlying
shares of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:
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“E/ A% EEME ROFAERGHE KRESAEILE W
Source Creation International Limited Beneficial owner 320,023,300 (L) 74.08% 1
EIREIR B R AR ERBAA
Note: Bsx -

1. As at 31 December 2019, the Company has 432,000,000 shares in
issues.

Abbreviation: “L” stands for long positions.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other persons who had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were required to be recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, as at 31
December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions constitute continuing connected transactions
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

1. 201912 A31H + AR FH432,000,0008% 2
BTG -

B [LIRKRHE -

B EXFERE S - MEFEATA - 2019912
H31H » HiEEAEM A TRAR R KA
BRI P BB REE 7 R E RO EXVERE2
Ko 35 B B A6 SC AR [A) 7R 1 ) Ko Bk 32 P 45¢ B8 O 4
BIORRE - RBTHENARBREESF NPT
(G PIE 33615 TF BRI B L MAERIOKR -

BBAIXS

REBRBZE2019F12 A31 B ILFE RS
RS HIBAR R E M IEHRK M43 - RIZGEM
EHRAIF20E - ZFRB T X HBNERHRR
ETHE - AEMBYRRIEREORER
BR G o NARHERDETGEM LM AR RIS 20
BENWBERTE

—NFFR ZREE (ER) ARAF 29



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had not entered into any
connected transaction which is subject to the disclosure
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that was publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the
date of this Annual Report, there was sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), who was the auditor of
the Group since 2014, has resigned as the auditor of the Group
with effect from 24 January 2020. Deloitte, in their letter of
resignation, confirmed that there were no matters in connection
with their resignation that needed to be brought to the attention
of the shareholders of the Company. The Board also confirmed
that there was no disagreement or unresolved matter between
the Company and Deloitte, and that they were not aware of
any matters in relation to the resignation of Deloitte as auditor
of the Group that needed to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
(“HLB”) as the auditors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 with effect from 24 January 2020. HLB will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution to re-appoint
HLB and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LUI MAN WAH

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices in order to safeguard the
interests of its shareholders. To accomplish this, the Company
has adopted the principles and code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Codes”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.
During the year, the Company had been in compliance with the
CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules,
except for the provision detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same person. The Company currently
has no CEO. All duties of CEO are shared among the executive
Directors, the Board believes that the present arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions
promptly, and thus achieve the Company’s objectives efficiently
and effectively in response to the changing environment.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing
expectations of shareholders and investors.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings concerning securities
transactions by the Directors as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Having been made specific enquiry, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the board of Directors, which has
the responsibility for leadership and monitoring of the Company.
The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs.

The Board sets strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board has delegated the daily operation
and day-to-day management of the Group as well as the
implementation of the Board’s policies and strategies to the
executive Director and management of the Group.

All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions objectively
and acting in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
at all times.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises
two executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) as named
below. An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles
and functions is posted on GEM'’s website and the Company’s
website from time to time.

Executive Directors

Hung Yuen Kin (Appointed on 16 October 2019)

Li Ka Yee Daphne (Appointed on 16 October 2019)

Tang Yau Sing (Resigned on 6 Novermber 2019)

Wong Siu Hung Patrick (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)
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Non-executive Director

Lui Man Wah (Chairman) (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Chen Xiao (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 20 May 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Wong Chi Ling (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Wong Ling Yan Philip (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Lee Man Yeung (Appointed on 16 October 2019)
Tsang Zee Ho Paul (Resigned on 6 November 2019)
Wang Yan (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)
Lau Fai Lawrence (Appointed on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 6 November 2019)
Tse Chi Wai (Resigned on 31 May 2019)
Wen Kai (Resigned on 31 May 2019)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” section of this Annual Report.

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
Ms. Wong Chi Ling has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as
to carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently. The Board
provides the Group with diversified industry expertise, advised the
management on strategic development and the Board maintains
high standard of compliance with financial and other mandatory
reporting requirements as well as provides adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) between members of the
Board.
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Role and Function of the Board and the Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which can be reserved to the Board and
delegated to management or Board committees. The Board
delegates day to-day operations of the Group to management
while reserving certain key matters, mainly relating to the approval
and monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies, policies and
business plans; and overseeing and evaluating the performance
of the Group. It is also responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its businesses by directing and supervising the
Group’s affairs. Board committees for specific functions are also
set up to ensure efficient Board operations. The composition and
functions of each Board committee and their major roles and
functions are described below. The final decision still rests with
the Board unless otherwise provided for in the terms of reference
of the relevant committees.

Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in Code Provision
A.5.6 of the CG Code, the Company has adopted diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its approach to
achieve diversity on the Board, and a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company
will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

The following table shows Directors’ attendance at Board,

EENEBNHERR

TRERNESHENEHZE2019F12/8318 1L

committees and shareholders meetings held in the financial year HEERITHNEEFEREZESGSHLAREAS
ended 31 December 2019: oE=p
Corporate
Governance
and Risk
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management  General
Board  Committee =~ Committee Committee =~ Committee =~ Meeting
LEER
ERER
EExg® ENZEE REZEE® FMzES ZEE® KRFEX®
Executive Director HTES
Hung Yuen Kin AR 777 N/ATNE A N/ATNE A N/ANE A NATNER  NATER
Li Ka Yee Daphne EE 77 N/ATNE A N/ANE A N/ANEA NANER  NATER
Tang Yau Sing HE8 24/24 N/ATER 2/2 2/2 11 2/2
Wong Siu Hung Patrick "B M 1717 N/AZNE A N/ATNE A N/ATNE A N/ANE R 11
Non-executive Director ~ FHTEE
Lui Man Wah B 7 N/ATNE A N/ANE A N/ATNE A NANER  NATER
Chen Xiao = 2/2 N/ANE A N/ANE A N/ANE A N/ATNE A il
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive Director
Wong Chi Ling AR 77 11 N/AT & N/ATE NATER NATER
Wong Ling Yan Philip BEEE 7 11 N/ANE A N/ATNE A NANER  NATER
Lee Man Yeung FF 77 il N/ATE R N/ATE R NATER NATER
Tsang Zee Ho Paul LER 24/24 4/4 2/2 2/2 11 2/2
Wang Yan T 1717 3/3 11 11 N/AT A 11
Lau Fai Lawrence %\PE 1717 3/3 1/1 1/1 N/ATER 11
Tse Chi Wai &R 1111 2/2 17 17 1 2/2
Wen Kai sl 1111 2/2 11 11 11 2/2
Note: BisE -
1. There is no meeting held by the Executive Committee and Treasury 1. ARFHITEESMHEZESRNEE2019F12

Committee of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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The Group adopted the practice of holding Board meetings
that included executive Directors, non-executive Director and
INEDs presented in person or through electronic means of
communication regularly at least four time every year. During
regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and
formulated the overall strategies of the Group, monitored financial
performances and reviewed the financial results, as well as
discussed and decided on other significant matters. The Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on
a particular matter is required.

Generally, notice of at least fourteen days should be given for a
Company'’s regular Board meeting. For all other Board meetings,
reasonable notice should be given. The Directors will receive the
agenda and accompanying documents tabled at the meeting
before regular Board meetings and will be given an opportunity
to include matters in the agenda for discussion from the Board
meetings, Board committees met on other occasions during
which matter relating to their respective terms of reference was
discussed. The Board committee members would receive notice,
agenda and documents to be tabled for consideration in advance
of each meeting in accordance with the CG Code and respective
terms of reference.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
THE DIRECTORS

The executive Directors have entered into an executive Director’s
service agreement with the Company and each of the non-
executive Director and INEDs has entered into a letter of
appointment with specific terms with the Company with an initial
term of three years, subject to renewal by the Company. All
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the Articles
of Association.
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Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of Members after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at the meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the INEDs in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Directors consider that all the INEDs remain
independent.

DIRECTORS’ PARTICIPATION IN CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL TRAININGS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will
be issued to directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors HREZE2019F12A31HILLFE  EFEEXMN
received training on the following areas with an emphasis onthe THAEEFEZXERERFABTEEEATIIR
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company in  EZ FTARIESRZ AR - BB ESEEY
compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on continuous 353l

professional development:

Corporate Governance/
updates on Laws, Rules
& Regulations

RER RIERE

RAIRER
Executive Directors HITES
Hung Yuen Kin REIR (R v
Li Ka Yee Daphne TRE v
Tang Yau Sing =g v
Wong Siu Hung Patrick =AU v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Lui Man Wah B3 v
Chen Xiao = v
Independent non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Wong Chi Ling Em s v
Wong Ling Yan Philip =HER 4
Lee Man Yeung FXF v
Tsang Zee Ho Paul e v
Wang Yan F5F v
Lau Fai Lawrence 22 v
Tse Chi Wai WERE v
Wen Kai SE v
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BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established the audit committee (“Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
and corporate governance & risk management committee
(“CGRM Committee”) for overseeing various particular aspects of
the Group’s affairs.

All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
such Board committees are available on GEM’s website and the
Company’s website. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resource to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The lists of the chairman and members of each Board committee
are set out in “Board Composition”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C.3.3
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules has been adopted. As at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Ms. Wong Chi Ling (Chairlady), Mr. Wong Ling Yan
Philip and Mr. Lee Man Yeung have appropriate professional
qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, four meetings of
the Audit Committee were held by the committee to review
the quarterly, half yearly and the annual results. The principal
responsibilities of the Audit Committee include to review the
financial results of the Group, the accounting principles, the
scope of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and
its independence, and be responsible for all the matters relating
to the continuing connected transaction of the Company. The
Audit Committee endorsed the accounting treatments adopted
by the Group and, to the best of its ability assured itself that
the disclosures of the financial information in the Company’s
quarterly, interim and annual reports comply with the applicable
accounting standards and the GEM Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
January 2015 pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip
(Chairman), Mr. Lui Man Wah, Ms. Wong Chi Ling and Mr. Lee
Man Yeung.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and senior
management; reviewing their remuneration packages, approving
the management’s proposal of remuneration packages by
reference to corporate goals, objectives and market practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two meetings of
the Remuneration Committee was held to review the structure
and policy of remuneration of the Group and approve the
remuneration package of Directors. Written resolutions of the
Remuneration Committee were passed to approve the grant of
share options. The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee according to the Directors’
respective responsibilities, individual performance and prevailing
market conditions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5.2 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man
Wah (Chairman), Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip
and Mr. Lee Man Yeung.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, the Board Diversity Policy, the Policy for the nomination of
directors, making recommendations to the Board on nomination,
rotation and re-appointment of Directors, and assessing the
independence of INEDs.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held to review the structure, size,
composition and diversification (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board, review the policy of Directors’
nomination related matters, make recommendations to the Board
on the proposal of reappointment of Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The attendance records of each committee member in the
Nomination Committee meeting held during the year are set out
in Directors’ Attendance at Board and General Meetings section
above.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out
the criteria for and process and procedures of nomination of
Directors. In accordance with the nomination policy, in evaluation
and selecting a candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to
be considered include:

- Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience;

- commitment to attending the meetings and participating in
relevant training and other board associated activities;

- Requirement for the Board to have independent Directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules;

- Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of Directors and succession planning.

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination process and
procedures, including but not limited to:

1. Identify and evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the proposal of
appointment or re-appointment of Director; and

2. Recommend the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate as a Director.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in terms of skills,
professional experience, educational background, knowledge,
culture, age and gender. The main objective of the policy is to
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of
the Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.
In accordance with the board diversity policy, a truly diverse
Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of the Directors. These differences will be
considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
All Board appointments will be based on merit while considering
diversity (including gender diversity).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee (the “CGRM Committee”) Committee on
23 January 2015 with written terms of reference. The Corporate
Governance Committee was renamed as Corporate Governance
& Risk Management Committee on 6 January 2016 to add in
risk management functions. As at the date of this annual report,
the CGRM Committee comprises Mr. Lui Man Wah (Chairman),
Ms. Wong Chi Ling, Mr. Wong Ling Yan Philip and Mr. Lee Man
Yeung.

The primary functions of the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee include, among others, reviewing and
making recommendation to the Board in respect of the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with any requirement, direction and
regulation that may be prescribed by the Board, contained in
any constitutional documents of the Group, or imposed by the
GEM Listing Rules, other applicable laws, regulations, rules and
codes, and ensuring that appropriate monitoring systems are
in place to ensure compliance with the relevant internal control
systems, processes and policies, oversee the effectiveness
of the procedures of the internal control system of the Group,
monitoring the implementation of the Group’s plan to maintain
high compliance with own risk management standards, providing
guideline to the management on risk management and to set
up procedures to identify, assessing and managing material risk
factors, and ensuring the management discharge its responsibility
in establishing an effective risk management system.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, one meeting of the
CGRM Committee was held to review the Group’s corporate
governance practice and oversee of the Company’s compliance
with the CG codes, to review and discuss about the internal
control procedures and finding of the Company.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company established an Executive Committee on 14 July
2015 with written terms of reference, and resolved to cancel the
Executive Committee on 6 November 2019.

There was no meeting held by the Executive Committee for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

TREASURY COMMITTEE

The Company established a Treasury Committee on 16 October
2015 with written terms of reference and resolved to cancel the
Treasury Committee on 6 November 2019.

There was no meeting held by the Treasury Committee for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering and reviewing
the appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external auditors, including
whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect on the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees paid/payable to
the auditors, HLB, in respect of the audit and non-audit services
are as follows:
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the remuneration of the
member(s) of senior management of the Group (excluding the
Directors of the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2019
by band is as follows:

B AREEEH M

RIESFAME X EB.1.51K - NEBEH £20194F
12A31B L FERBEZ NEREREBAS
(RRARIESBRINBE BT -

Number of
Remuneration individual(s)
i A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T 3

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board and the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
committee of the Company are acknowledges its responsibility for
the risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness annually. Policies have been designed for
monitoring the regulations and laws compliance of the Company
and to advise on the risks involved in major decisions that need
to be reviews by the Board and solutions to the major risks.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal control for effective risk management are implemented.
The management is responsible for overseeing the risk
management and internal control activities of the Group. The
Corporate Governance & Risk Management Committee of the
Company provides independent review on effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and gives their recommendation to the Board. The Board is
responsible for reviewing the internal audit report and approving
policies and procedures designed by the management.
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The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defence, business units
are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with each business or deal. The management, as the
second line of defence, defines rule sets and models, provides
technical support, develops new systems and oversees portfolio
management. It ensures that risks are within the acceptable
range and that the first line of defence is effective. As the final
line of defence, the Corporate Governance & Risk Management
Committee of the Company, ensures that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection and
monitoring.

Risk Management

Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca same as

the functional currency of the respective group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk which
materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

In currant year, the Group was exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate other borrowings.

The Group is not expect any significant interest rate risk which
materially affect the Group’s results of operations in 2019 and
2018.
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Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collaterals, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
position and condition is performed on each and every major
customer periodically. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry in which customers operate also has an influence on
credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting period,
the Group has concentration of credit risk as 23% (2018: 24%)
of the total trade receivables of the Company was due from
the largest customer and 51% (2018: 73%) of the total trade
receivables of the Group was due from the largest 5 customers.
Taking into accounts the creditworthiness of the customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of bad debts, the
directors consider that such concentration of credit risk would
not result in significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants
to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The Board, through the Corporate Governance & Risk
Management Committee, has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2019 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance functions, is of the
view that the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are considered as effective and
adequate.

Internal Audit

The Group currently does not have an internal audit department.
The Board will review and consider to establish such department
as and when it thinks necessary.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditor of the Group in relation
to their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with Shareholders
and management.

During the year, upon the resignation of Mr. Sin Kin Hong Edward
on 3 April 2019, Mr. Yu Ngai was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company in replace of Mr. Sin Kin Hong Edward.

Mr. Yu Ngai and Mr. Sin Kin Hong Edward confirmed that each
of them has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Group provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).

Right to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company, any one or more
member(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene EGM, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expense incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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The requisition in writing should be sent to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry at
www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public
counter at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.

Contact information of the Company is set out as follows:

Principle Office: Workshop A, 14th Floor, V Ga Building, 532 Castle
Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3643 0799

Facsimile: (852) 3622 1457

E-mail: info@wintogroup.hk

Company website: www.wintogroup.hk

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its Shareholders. The focus of the
Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair,
accurate, truthful and complete thereby enabling the public as
well as the investors to make rational and informed decisions.

The Board strives to encourage and maintain constant dialogue
with its Shareholders through various means. The Company
updates its Shareholders on its latest business developments and
financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports. All Shareholders’ communications are available on the
Company’s website. The website of the Company also provides
email address, postal address, fax number and telephone
number by which Shareholders’ enquiries may be put to the
Company’s Board. Appropriate members of the Board and
senior management are ready to respond to enquiries from
Shareholders and investors on a timely basis.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend. External auditors are also
available at the annual general meeting to address Shareholders’
queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to independent
Shareholders’ approval, members of the independent Board
committee will also make an effort to attend to address
Shareholders’ queries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no
significant change in the constitutional documents.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder value.
The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and relevant laws
and regulations. The Board shall take into account the factors,
including but not limited to:

- Actual and expected financial performance;

Cash flow situation;
- The Group’s business and operations; and

= Economic conditions and other factors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

HLB) B fif &3t & ¥ 4 5t A o 3

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winto
Group (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to
187, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, which states that the Group incurred a net loss
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$38,900,995, and
had net operating cash outflows of HK$14,093,826 for the year
ended 31 December 2019, and as of the date, the Group’s total
liabilities exceeded its total assets by HK$11,898,425. These
matters, along with other matters as described in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
HRESEE

Valuation of goodwiill

BEEE

We identified the impairment of goodwill arising from the
acquisition of to be Concepts Limited (“TBC”) as a key audit
matter, as the amount is quantitatively significant to the Group
and the valuation requires an estimation of the value in use of
the business. The estimation of the value in use is subject to
significant management estimates, in respect of the discount
rate, terminal rate and growth rates. No impairment loss was
recognised during the year.
EEHNNBERBEBELREERAR(BLREDEENEER
ERARETFEE REAZ2HEY ESEREELNEARE
F - MEESERGEHAEBOERERE - LBREX KRR KIE
REXME HetEREBEFEEEENERME - FALERE
R IEREE °

Details relating to the assessment of the goodwill is set out in
notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EANETNEEERETEE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of TBC included:
EEAMBYNBEBL REIPTEEEERER
HHRFEE

° Assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation model and obtaining evidence to
support the estimated cash flow forecast
prepared by management;

o  HMEMERAEMNEEERIGEREU R
EREMmEMLARESRETRA

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the
key assumptions and inputs such as
the terminal rate and growth rates used
in the respective models by comparing
the management’s expectations against
our understanding of the current market
circumstances; and

o  FHMAEERMRH KB ASE BN SER
FANKERERR)NESYE AR
S EIR B TR R E E 8 B Al O A IR R
HEITHER &

° Critically challenging the reasonableness of
the discount rate adopted by management
with reference to available market data.

o ZEWMAMBGEE  HEEEMERMEIR
e ETHRRE

—NFFHR ZREE (ER) ARAF 5]
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18 3 % BUED &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key audit matter
HRESEE

Valuation of trade and other receivables and loan receivables

ESRAMERF AR EREHLITE

We identified the valuation of trade and other receivables and loan
receivables as a key audit matter as the amounts are significant
and the determination of expected credit loss (“ECL”) requires
significant management judgements.
EEHBHNESREMERFERERERGERFERESSF
B REAReBEAKECRREERB(RBEEREDS
Eﬁﬁﬁmékﬂﬁ

In respect of certain of the Group’s trade receivables, the Group
uses provision matrix to calculate the ECL. The provision rates
are based on debtor’s aging consisting of debtors with common
credit risk characteristic. The provision matrix is based on the
Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

# BEEEETESRERENS X EXERARGHERE
HHRBREEEE - BEXIREHAXKXRAGERAREBNER
AEREEARKETE - BHERERIER ?EIMﬁié
HWEGHRAELER) - REBEAREE  BELBRELNXTE
TEHFEEZRAEEERNES -

In respect of other receivables and loan receivables, the Group
assesses the expected credit loss individually by estimation
based on historical credit loss experience, general economic
conditions of the relevant industry in which the debtors operate,
value of any pledged assets, financial position of the debtor
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date

E A EWRIE R EKERM S SEEBRENBEREE
EEAR %ﬂ‘%/\%%aﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%m%‘%ﬁ%@ﬂkﬂ (ER N
BREENEE EBANMBIRR RN ERE B E B AIAKE
BIARR T e EHE 2 5 - EFTEBRHREEERE -

FRFITEE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ETNEERREETSE

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
valuation of trade and other receivables and
Ioan receivables included:

ZEMTHE S RHEMERGIERERER
MEM&P@ﬁ

o Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the loss allowance
for trade and other receivables and loan
receivables;

o THREBRRENMESKEMBKKIERE
WEREBBEENFEEZHTE

° Testing the integrity of information used
by management to develop the provision
matrix, including trade receivables ageing
analysis as at 31 December 2019, on a
sample basis, by comparing individual
items in the analysis with the relevant sales
agreements, sales invoices and other
supporting documents;

s FAYWHMHEBHEEDR HEEZENHM
FRAXMH T ERIER - AT
ERAER TR G EREERE - 815
EA2019¢12H31 H&E 5 W IE R ik

DT

° In respect of other receivables and loan
receivables, assessing the reasonableness
of management’s assessment and the
financial position of the counterparty as at
31 December 2019;

e HHEHMEWHEREWERMS @ AEE
BEIENEGEBEMERR %gﬁmmmﬁ
12 A31 BE B AR R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRETER

18 M % SEM

BRFTEE@)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

EANETNEEERETEE

Valuation of trade and other receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

EZRAMERFEREREHLE (&)

Based on the result of the foregoing, the management has
recognised impairment losses on trade and other receivables and
loan receivables of HK$22,702,474. As at 31 December 2019,
the carrying amount of the Group’s trade and other receivables
and loan receivables, net of allowance for credit loss, was
HK$8,765,776 and nil respectively.

ERARER - EREHRE S KA MR KKIE R ERE K
BEEE22,702,4748 7T - 2019 12A31H - X&EE 5
KREAMEYHRIBEREKEFEEEGREEBERE DRR
8,765,776/ TT R fEE ©

Details relating to the Group’s trade and other receivables
and loan receivables are set out in notes 25 and 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEEHE S REMBERFIBERERERNFBEHRIGEE M5 HR
THFE25 K24 -

At

Challenging management’s basis and
judgement in determining credit loss
allowance on trade receivables as at
31 December 2019, including their
identification of credit impaired trade
receivables, the reasonableness of
management’s grouping of the remaining
trade debtors into different categories
in the provision matrix, and the basis
of estimated loss rates applied in each
category in the provision matrix (with
reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information);
EREREEEETN2019F12H318E
SR IAE B R ERNELE R AE -
BREEREERENE ZEYGIE - B
ERHTEZRKES FBEERE 2 TR
HRINEIEMN - U RBEERESZERE
AR EEERNEE(BRERLENE
NATREMHERD

Challenging management’s basis and
judgement in determining credit loss
allowance on other receivables and loan
receivables as at 31 December 2019,
including their identification of credit
impaired loan receivables, and the basis
of estimated loss rates applied in each
individual loan (with reference to forward-
looking information); and
EREEEAEETN2019F12A31HHE
fib B HRIE R EW E R EEEEEHNE
ERHE - BERREERENEWER
REEFEANMTEEERNELE(ZRE
AIEMEERD - &

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and loan receivables in notes
24, 25 and 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AR E B mEKNE24 - 25 KR41E#E
B 5 I Ho b FE WK IE & B W B FOR B R
BB ERIE N
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 were audited by another auditors who
expressed an unmodified opinion on 29 March 2019.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

18 M % SEM
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

REAMH BT RS M BRRARENN
BEE@
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020

18 M % SEM
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meREskREAMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Notes HK$ HK$
BaE BT BIT
Continuing operations BEREEK
Revenue U Z5 B 20,604,683 14,785,259
Cost of sales SHERK A (11,400,582) (11,420,574)
Gross profit FEAH| 9,204,101 3,364,685
Other income E A 7 87,884 521,121
Operating expenses KRS (24,378,912) (26,888,850)
Impairment loss recognised under EHEEBEEX THERN
expected credit loss model BEEE 10 (22,702,474) (9,790,491)
Other gains or losses H i zssk &8 8 (262,003) (1,455,383)
Finance costs BB 9 (1,541,431) (120,930)
Loss before tax BB AT 1B 10 (39,592,835)  (34,369,848)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frisf (A, #He 11 (173,772) 21,759
Loss for the year from BREBECEEBNTESE
continuing operations (39,766,607) (34,348,089)
Discontinued operation RIEREER
Profit/(loss) for the year from BRI E B FAN
discontinued operation wm Al (E18) 12 290,510 (4,332,716)
Loss for the year FREER (39,476,097) (38,680,805)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FREME2EBIX)
income for the year
Item that will not be reclassified to TEEH D EE B
profit or loss: EHH
Fair value loss on equity instruments X A BT A L2
at fair value through other W IR T AR
comprehensive income NEEEBE (1,423,467) =
Items that may be reclassified P8 I ok EY - Fdip)
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINETFHE X Z 58
translating foreign operations (201,461) 309,699
Reclassification adjustment for MEHEBINEBHER
a foreign operation disposed of DI E 20,276 =
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FREMZ2EFES), W
income for the year, net of income (FOBRFET1SHL)
tax (1,604,652) 309,699
Total comprehensive expense FREEBZHARE
for the year (41,080,749) (38,371,106)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEeRERkREtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Notes HK$ HK$
BaE BT BIT
Loss for the year attributable to: EhFERNEE :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZZ =N
— for continuing operations - RIS ELLET (39,206,651) (34,497,905)
— for discontinued operation - BRER AR T 305,656 (2,965,817)
(38,000,995) (37,463,722
Non-controlling interests FEIE R
— for continuing operations - MFELEED (559,956) 149,816
— for discontinued operation - BRI EET (15,146) (1,366,899)
(575,102) (1,217,083)
(39,476,097) (38,680,805)
Total comprehensive expense for E{HFEREBAXEALEE :
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE Z =N (40,407,994) (37,303,735)
Non-controlling interests FEVERRAE 2 (672,755) (1,067,371)
(41,080,749)  (38,371,100)
(restated)
(&&E75)
From continuing and discontinued B#FERKIEKEEK
operations
Loss per share i EE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) B N 5E (B 15 (9.00) (8.67)
(restated)
(&E:7)
From continuing operations BIFEREEK
Loss per share FiEE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EAR K #5E GBI 15 (9.08) (7.99)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated K& M M sE i AR 4R & A TS SRR A AEAK 2B ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

5 BB AR O R

At 31 December 2019 72019512 431 H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment B 17 1,450,156 2,675,374
Gooduwill BES 19 1,399,146 1,399,146
Intangible assets mEEE 20 330,000 330,000
Equity instruments at fair value BEAVTEFAEMER
through other comprehensive WA T A
income 22 - 1,423,467
Deposit paid for acquisition of I is — R = A A A
an associate EffZe 25 - 16,600,000
Rental deposits Heke 25 - 570,604
3,179,302 22,998,591
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABEN
through profit or loss TREE 23 - 1,062,000
Loan receivables FEWE R 24 - 6,975,770
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A e W IR 25 8,765,776 4,371,950
Contract costs BRI 26 869,651 =
Tax recoverable AT Y B F I8 137,608 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR AR 27 3,603,473 10,686,511
13,376,508 23,096,231
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E A E IR 28 7,121,180 7,575,844
Contract liabilities SHEE 29 1,159,283 550,785
Other borrowing H A &R 30 10,000,000 10,000,000
Amount due to a non-controlling e — BT B A A FEFE AR
shareholder of a subsidiary A& R A IR 33 - 113,953
Tax payables FERTHTR 173,772 117,353
Bank overdrafts RITEX 27 - 2,894,173
18,454,235 21,252,108
Net current (liabilities)/assets REN(BE) BEFE (5,077,727) 1,844,123
Total assets less current liabilities #EERTEE B (1,898,425) 24,842,714

62 WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
5 B AR R

At 31 December 2019 12019512 431 H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
Non-current liability kRBEE
Loan from a shareholder IRERE XK 31 10,000,000 -
Net (liabilities)/assets F(EEBE (11,898,425) 24,842,714
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital A&7 34 8,640,000 8,640,000
Reserves ] (20,924,152) 18,824,806
Total (capital deficiency)/ AATEE AEN
equity attributable to owners (BAE4)
of the Company (12,284,152) 27,464,806
Non-controlling interests IR A 385,727 (2,622,092)
Total (capital deficiency)/equity (BAREH),EHEE (11,898,425) 24,842,714

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 187 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hung Yuen Kin
RER 2
Director

EFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated
financial statements.

FE0AEEF187TE ML A B HRERN2020F 3
AORKEEETSH ENRKRETETHIATES
REERE

Li Ka Yee Daphne
TEE
Director

EE
BEM P EBAAR & I SRR VAR BE )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEREBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGE PN 1
Fair value
through
other
Share comprehensive Non-
Share Share options  Statutory ~ Exchange income  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
BAYE
AR
2ENE
k& RGEE ERERE iERE  ERXRE A ZitER Nt FERES At
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS HKS$
BT e BT BT BT fon BT BT BT BT
(Note ) (Note b) (Note )
(e (WD) (HtzEc)
At 1 January 2018 R2018F151A 8,640,000 94,330,810 - - (76459 - (42088,126) 60806229  (2,350,589) 58,455,640
Loss for the year EnEA - - - - - - (37463722) (37463722)  (1,217,083) (38,680,809)
Other comprehensive income ER2ENG :
for the year:
Exchange differences arisingon ~—~~ REENEBHELZE
translating foreign operations - - - - 159,987 - - 159,987 149712 309,699
Total comprehensive income/ FR2ENE/ (B EE
(expense) for the year - - - - 159,987 - (7463722 (37,308,735  (1,067,371) (38,371,106)
Acquisifon of a business (note 35)  REEEH (H535) - - - - - - - - 795868 795,868
Recognition of equity-settied BERARREERNOTHN
share-based payment - 3,962,312 - - - - 3,962,312 - 3962312
At 31 December 2018 and R2018E12A31A R
1 January 2019 20198151A 8,640,000 94330810 3,962,312 - 83,532 - (79551,848) 27464806 (2,622,002 24,842,714
Loss for the year i) < - - - - - - (38,900,995  (38,900,995) (575,102) (39,476,097)
Other comprehensive (expense)  EREM2EER) /U -
income for the year:
Fair value loss on eqiy BATEA ALt 2AR
instruments at fair value HEHRATA
through other MATEER
comprehensive income - - - - - (1,423,467) - (1,423,467 - (1,423,467
Exchang differences arising RERIEROELZE
on translating foreign
operations - - - - (103,808 - - (103,808) (97,653  (201,461)
Reclassfication adjustment SEHESNERNER
for a forelgn operation HERE
disposed of - - - - 20,276 - - 20,276 - 20,276
Total comprehensive expense FR2ARXER
for the year - - - - (8353  (1423467) (38,900,995  (40,407,994) (672,755) (41,080,749)
Disposal of subsidaries (note 35) i EHIB A (Bf3t36) - - - - - - - - 3680574 3,680,574
Recognition of equity-settled ERRAEERNHTHN
share-based payment - - 659,036 - - - - 659,036 - 659,036
Cancelation of share options iHEBERE - (4,621,348) - - - 4,621,348 - - -
Appropriation of statutoryreserve BB ETERE - - - 4854 - - (48,544) - - -
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A31A 8,640,000 94,330,810 - 48544 - (1,423467)  (113,880,039) (12,284,152 385,727 (11,898,425)
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Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GREREBSER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

Share options reserve represents the fair value of services estimated
to be received in exchange for the grant of the relevant share options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for each reporting
period is determined by spreading the fair value of the share options
over the relevant vesting periods (if any) and is recognised as expenses
with a corresponding increase in share options reserve.

In accordance with the article 377 of the Macau Commercial Code, the
Company’s subsidiary incorporated in Macau are required to transfer
a minimum of 25% of the annual net profits to a statutory reserve
until that reserve equals 50% of the nominal value of their capital. The
statutory reserve may not be distributed in the form of cash dividends
or otherwise, during the life of the company.

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve represents
cumulative gains and losses on fair value of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREMER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$ HK$
P& BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Loss before tax BR 15 A BT 18
— from continuing operations - MRELEER (39,592,835) (34,369,848)
— from discontinued operation - MR ER 290,510 (4,332,716)
Adjustments for: ARREE
Interest income FEUA (87,884) (397,349)
Interest expense FMEFAX 1,541,431 120,930
Depreciation of plant and B MR EITE
equipment 841,203 979,021
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE
assets 1,745,185 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B A B fy U es 36 (100,872) (1,161,846)
Loss on disposal of & B3 M AR R Y S 1R
plant and equipment - 64,423
Net loss on fair value changes of BEAFEFABR(ZEA
financial assets at fair value FEFABRZDHSR
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) BEZATEZSHEE
HRR 34,040 539,448
Share-based payment expense A& SR 2 37 659,036 3,962,312
Impairment loss recognised under BHEEBEER THER
expected credit loss model B E B 18 22,702,474 10,661,912
Operating cash flows before LEESEHHINLE
movements in working capital BWEMA (11,967,712) (23,933,713)

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other

B 5 N E R URIA K

receivables and rental deposits Bezegm, (6,029,142) 755,997
Increase in contract costs B KIS IE N (869,651) =
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 [ E b &~ zXIE 1 A0 3,799,459 2,649,662
Increase/(decrease) in contract BHEERENCRD)

liabilities 1,159,283 (759,527)
Cash used in operations KEEBAAR S (13,907,763) (21,287,581)
Profits tax (paid)/refund RSB (3K, IR (186,063) 679,131
Net cash used in operating RETHFAE SR

activities (14,093,826)  (20,608,450)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF-CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

2019 2018
20194 2018%F
Notes HK$ HK$
BsE BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Interest received 2 W F 8 87,884 134,349
Advance of loans BTE R - (16,602,822)
Deposit paid for acquisition of B — B E R RN B Mige
an associate (3,400,000) (16,600,000)
Purchase of plant and equipment BEEM MR 1% (91,245) (2,554,409)
Net cash outflow resulting from WiE —RIM B A RNER 2R
acquisition of a subsidiary FEE 35 - (2,120,779)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BB & A T EFF A=
SHEE - (1,899,896)
Acquisition of intangible asset Ui fm & B B - (330,000)
Net cash inflow resulting from HERBARNRERAEE
disposal of subsidiaries 264,083 12,763,216
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERQFHEFABRENEH
assets at FVTPL BEMSHKIA 1,027,960 3,205,448
Proceeds from disposal of plant and 15 254 & 5% FT 1S 5008
equipment ) - 713,432
Repayment of loan receivables FEWE FE R 5,000,000 =
Repayment from former shareholder — FiIA% 5 & 70 - 2,510
Net cash generated from/(used in) R&EEE S, (Fr )
investing activities HEBE 2,888,682 (23,288,951)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Interest paid 215 F B (1,624,993) (20,930)
Proceeds from other borrowings E i (& RTS8 5,970,932 10,000,000
Repayment of other borrowings EZEMER (5,970,932) =
Proceeds from shareholder loan IR B RT3 50E 10,000,000 =
Repayment of lease liability EEHERE (1,397,449) =
Repayment of obligation under EEREMEEAE
finance lease - (244,381)
Net cash generated from financing BEFE SRS FHE
activities 6,977,558 9,734,689
Net decrease in cash and REeRREEEMRD FE
cash equivalents (4,227,586) (34,162,712)
Cash and cash equivalents at REFNBEERRESEEY
the beginning of
the reporting period 7,792,338 41,955,423
Effect of foreign exchange rate SN [ 3= B Eh R B
changes 38,721 (873)
Cash and cash equivalents REFRBEERRESEEY
at the end of the reporting period 3,603,473 7,792,338
Analysis of the balances of cash HRERBEESEBEYEHB DT
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NIRE 27 3,603,473 10,686,511
Less: bank overdrafts W BB - (2,894,173)
3,603,473 7,792,338

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated

financial statements.

BE P B EERB AR AR & B 5 SR AR D 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its issued shares are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office, and
head office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to
the annual report. Its ultimate parent is Source Creation
International Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liabilities and owned by Mr. Lui
Man Wah (“Mr. Lui”). Mr. Lui is a director of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
(together with the Company referred to as the “Group”)
are provision of exhibition and trade show service, and
publication and media advertising.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is same as the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) = Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
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NE) (B3P GEM BT o KA Rl AYE iR
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=
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BAR(ERARRGHE QI ANEEDONE
BEXRBRRHERERESRERS LY
NIREES °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases, and
the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not
reassessed contracts which already existed prior to the date
of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16, the Group is not required to make any adjustment
on transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor
but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative
information has not been restated. During the year ended
31 December 2019, application of HKFRS 16 by the
Group as a lessor has no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

70

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal
to the related lease liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or
accrued lease payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis,
to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

(i)  relied on the assessment of whether leases are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an alternative of
impairment review;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

(i)

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-
of-use assets at the date of initial application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of
properties in Hong Kong was determined on a
portfolio basis; and

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term of the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of relevant group entities at the
date of initial application. The incremental borrowing rate
applied is 5.13%.

Al

b

FERFIERMBREE
RS R REBRT (4

=

(T&#
)

i}

FEERFERNHI T B BREE
B % E1&5] (&)

BB BHREERF167HE (&)
TERATN (B)

RERTHDBAKLHENHENEE
BER  AEECEAR & RERRHA
FAEREIRMNEEERMNE - CRAMNE
EERFERFE5.13% °

At
1 January 2019
A2019F1 818

HK$
BIT
Operating lease commitments disclosed 2018F 12 A31 BB AL E
at 31 December 2018 THEAIE 4,881,219
Less: recognition exemption — short-term leases & - R EA® — SHIHE (460,569)
Undiscounted lease liabilities relating to operating & F & 7 B1 76 5 &5 £ Bl 55 1657 14 R £2
leases recognised upon application of KEHERBANARBHERRE
HKFRS 16 4,420,650
Less: future finance costs I RIREEE AN (239,372)
Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1ENHERE 4,181,278
Analysed as: Sa 1=
Current B EA 1,873,885
Non-current SEBNEH 2,307,393
4,181,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERAHITEEUBREERN(EHES
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Bt R ) & EIE 5T (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are AEEREERNFT BBV BEREE
mandatorily effective for the current year A& HAEET (&)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEBYMBEHREERF16%HE (18)
As a lessee (Continued) 1EREAN (&)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as BAFEAELEENR2019F1 A1ANER
at 1 January 2019 comprises of the following: BEREATEE
Right-of-use
assets
FREEE
HKS
HBIT

Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases & Fi & 78 B 75 5 5 4B R 55 1655 14 R £2

recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 KwEHERENFREEE 4,181,278
By class: Rl
Office premises WREYHE 4,181,278
—E-NFFR EREE (ER) BRAF 73



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

74

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

2. ERFIIERMBRE

ZR([FE

MR EER ) REBRT (@

FEERFERNHI T B BREE

B % E1&5] (&)
BB BHREERF167HE (&)

TERATN (B)

MR20194F1 A1 El%?é%“ﬂkﬂ%ﬂhﬁﬁm
REBTUATHARE - RINRASEER

position at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not ZMIEa -
affected by the changes have not been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018 Adjustments 2019
720194
1B18&%
20185 MBHmEER
128318 %Al E165RE T
2HRMVREE FE HEREE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE - 4,181,278 4,181,278
Current liabilities REEE
Lease liabilities HEBE - (1,873,885) (1,873,885)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE - (2,307,393) (2,307,393)
Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities Mzt . 2 MBEEEEZE E2019F12A31H

under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019,
movements in working capital have been computed based on
opening statement of financial position at 1 January 2019 as
disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Insurance Contracts’
Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform*

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

For financial instruments and investment property which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group, in light of the fact that
the Group incurred a net loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$38,900,995 (2018: HK$37,463,722) and
had net operating cash outflows of HK$14,093,826 (2018:
20,608,450) during the year ended 31 December 2019 and,
as of that date, the Group’s total liabilities exceeded its total
assets by HK$11,898,425 (2018: total assets exceeded
its total liabilities of HK$24,842,714). Notwithstanding the
above result, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group’s financial
performance and liquidity position. The validity of the going
concern basis depends upon the success of the Group’s
future operations, its ability to generate adequate cash flows
in order to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due such that the Group can meet its future working
capital and financing requirements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The directors of the Company have performed an
assessment of the Group’s future liquidity and cash flows,
taking into account the following relevant matters:

Mr. Lui, the ultimate shareholder and director of the
Company, has granted an unsecured loan facility of up to
HK$40,000,000 (the “Facility”) during the available period
which will expire on 31 December 2021. The Facility bears
an interest of 2% per annum. During the year ended 31
December 2019, an aggregate amount of HK$10,000,000
of the Facility has been drawn down by the Company. At
31 December 2019, the Facility of HK$30,000,000 was
unutilised, unrestricted and available to be drawn down.

Mr. Lui has also agreed to provide continuing financial
support to the Group and confirmed that he will not demand
repayment and will not withdraw the Facility provided to the
Group and have financial ability to provide facility granted to
the Group within the next twelve months.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow projections prepared by the management. The
cash flow projections cover a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2019. Based on the cash flow
projections, the Group will have sufficient financial resources
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2019. The
management has made key assumptions on the projections
with regard to the anticipated cash flows from the Group’s
operations and capital expenditures.

The directors of the Company consider that after taking into
account of the above-mentioned matters, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligation for at least the next twelve
months from the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liqguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Changes in Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries with change of control

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests
(if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

The Group incurs costs to fulfill a contract in its exhibition
and trade show contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an asset in
terms of other relevant Standards, failing which it recognises
an asset for these costs only if they meet all of the following
criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to

satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue from the following major sources: 1) publications
and media advertising; 2) outdoor advertising income; 3)
mobile app development service income; and 4) exhibition
and trade show service income. The Group’s revenue
recognition policies on each of these revenue sources are
as follows:

(i)  Publications and media advertising

The Group generates advertising income from the
publications that are point and online media platform.
The customers simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits when the advertisements are released on
the designated publications and online media platform.
Revenue from publications and media advertising
is recognised over time using the output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract.

The Group earns revenue from selling publications.
Revenue from sales of publications is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the
magazines.

(i) Outdoor advertising income

The Group provides outdoor advertising spaces to
customers. The customers simultaneously receive
and consume the benefits when the advertisement is
displayed on the outdoor advertising spaces. Revenue
from outdoor advertising is recognised over time using
the output method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(iii) Mobile app development service income

The Group provides the mobile app development
service to the customers. Revenue from mobile app
development service is recognised over time using the
input method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

The contract liability is released as revenue when
the Group transfer the goods or services to the
customers.

(iv) Exhibitions and trade show service income

Revenue from provision of exhibitions and trade show
services is recognised over time using the output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exception to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

ERETBERBE @)

HE @

EEBEEBFRBEA (RBR 20918 B X
FEREEBYMHHREERE165) ()

EAREE

s R EEELERE)  ARE
RSB B 5B (AR A T g A
B RRERELE © EREAERAA
B 578 ROREBIA B - LM
5 (BB AR (R -

EREEENKARLE

MERBENVHRITESHE

s NHEMBMRZAELNERNEE
[ REAEREEES

s AKBELNEAIIGERKA
54

s AKRBERFMEBMEBHEBEE &
REBEEMES LN ERBEER
2= 2 T E AR FR S 5R1F PT AR E RO R
LRSS EE A RN ET

h AN 52 B A TE B B4 SRS & T2 e e A ERAR
MHEEEMERNERREENS - A8
BEREEEAMMAMESAERAF
IR ERRT IR E - B8 - EREEE
REGEERNEGF AERFHMEEDN
(ARG E REE) NEHRITE -

AREBREEMBARRKRAREREEE
2V REHFER -

—NFFHR ZREE (ER) ARAF 87



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

o amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease modlfications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense
on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “exchange reserve” (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Employee benefits
Bonuses
The Group recognises a liability for bonuses when there is

a contractual obligation and the amount can be estimated
reliably.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employees’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of relevant income
vests immediately upon the completion of service in the
relevant service period, while the remaining portion vests in
accordance with the MPF Scheme’s vesting scales. Where
employees leave the MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting
of the employer’s contributions, the amount of forfeited
contributions is used to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s subsidiaries in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes operated by the government of the PRC
is to make the specified contributions under the schemes.

Social security fund

Full-time employees of the Group’s Macau subsidiaries are
covered by a government-mandated defined contribution
plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement benefit
would be determined and paid by the Macau government.
Contributions are generally made by both employees and
employers by paying a fixed amount on a monthly basis
to the Social Security Fund Contribution managed by the
Macau government.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
share-based payment reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when investment
properties are depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EASHBERE®E
POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued) HiE (&)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
their fair values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives and
contract cost to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance with
applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any, for
assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to the
extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects to receive in
exchange for related goods or services less the costs which
relate directly to providing those goods or services that have
not been recognised as expenses. The assets capitalised as
contract costs are then included in the carrying amount of
the CGU to which they belong for the purpose of evaluating
impairment of that CGU.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable
amount of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to
the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, contract costs and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUSs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
at FVTPL are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as other income.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRSY/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates

or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

M

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as FVTOCI

Investment in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the
FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) ~ Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the other gain and losses line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including loan receivables,
trade and other receivables and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the end of the
reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing component.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

U)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account

any collaterals held by the Group).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

i)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when (i) a trade receivable
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments

are grouped on the past-due status basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
loan receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognised its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognised the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, other
borrowings, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary and bank overdrafts are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises the financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows presentation,
cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which
is repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

() A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:
(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(8) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(1)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others);

(2) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member);

(8) both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(6) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group;

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related party transactions (Continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(Continued)

(ii) (Continued)

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); or

(8) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between the Group and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit, a suitable discount rate, terminal rate and
growth rates in order to calculate the present value. No
impairment loss on goodwill was recognised during the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 21.

Provision of ECL for trade and loan receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on debtor’s aging
as groupings of various debtors with common credit risk
characteristic. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable,
and that is available without undue cost or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade receivables that are credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

In respect of loan receivables, the Group assesses the
expected credit losses individually by estimation based
on historical credit loss experience, general economic
conditions of the relevant industry in which the debtors
operate, value of any pledged assets, financial position of
the debtor and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The information about the Group’s loan receivables, trade
receivables and credit risk and impairment assessment are
disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 41 respectively. As at 31
December 2019, the carrying amount of loan receivables
and trade receivables is HK$nil (2018: HK$6,975,770) and
HK$3,021,293 (2018: HK$2,359,409), respectively.
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REVENUE 5. W&
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHNNBZHAD
customers
Continuing operations IFHEEERER
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Provision of exhibition and trade show 1RERE K E 5 R B RS
service 13,106,568 13,474,719
Publications and media advertising T R BE B A
income 7,498,115 1,310,540
20,604,683 14,785,259
Timing of revenue recognition Wi 5 7 52 By
A point in time Sk 70,140 62,870
Overtime B s 20,534,543 14,722,389
20,604,683 14,785,259

Transaction allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contract with customer

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to all its sale contracts such that the
Group does not disclose information about revenue that
the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining

performance obligations.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines in a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”), being
the executive directors of the Company for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No
operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

1. Exhibition and trade show business
2.  Mobile app business

3.  Publications and media advertising business, including
print and online media advertising and sales of
publications

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
acquired a business which is engaged in exhibition and
trade show business which are described in more details in
note 35.

An operating segment regarding the mobile app business
was discontinued during the year ended 31 December
2019. The segment information reported below does not
include any amounts for this discontinued operation, which
are described in more details in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is set out below.
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R B — BERT AARB R AN SR B H A] 2 37

S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. KEHIH@E
Segment revenues and results D EUN I R EE
Continuing operations FFEAEXEK

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12A31A L FE

Publications

Exhibition and
and media
trade show advertising
business business Total
T4
RER R iEeE
BESREER & &K &a&t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Revenue W 3=
Segment revenue 7 EBUL AR 13,106,568 7,498,115 20,604,683
Inter-segment sales DEEEE - - -
Revenue from external KA B
customers 13,106,568 7,498,115 20,604,683
Segment profit 7 5B ) 3,918,066 5,286,035 9,204,101
Other income H A A 87,884
Operating expenses KERY (24,378,912)
Impairment loss recognised B EEBRER THER
under expected credit loss BB EEE
model (22,702,474)
Other gains or losses H b U5k B8 (262,003)
Finance costs & KA (1,541,431)
Loss before tax Bk %5 Al 5 18 (39,592,835)
Income tax expense FRigfif 2 (173,772)
Loss for the year FNEE (39,766,607)
—E-NFFR EREE (ER) BRAF 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2]
N

Ilgaﬁﬁ

B (80

P L6 IS ES A Y

FHEZERE(E)

HZE2018FE12A31A ILEE

Publications
Exhibition and
and media
trade show advertising
business business  Consolidated
k)
RE & K isag
B OREE i e
HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT BT BT
Revenue Yz
Segment revenue 7 EBUL AR 13,474,719 1,320,540 14,795,259
Inter-segment sales S EBHEIHE = (10,000) (10,000)
Revenue from external REINEPR P A
customers 13,474,719 1,310,540 14,785,259
Segment profit/(loss) DERF, (EB) 4,317,256 (952,571) 3,364,685
Other income Halg A 521,121
Operating expenses KERX (26,888,850)
Impairment loss recognised B EEEERAT®R
under expected credit loss HY R {E B8
model (9,790,491)
Other gains or losses HE sk EiE (1,455,383)
Finance costs raﬂ‘léf)ﬂiﬁ (120,930)
Loss before tax Br % Al & 1B (34,369,848)
Income tax credit Fristif e 21,759
Loss for the year FAEIE (34,348,089)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)
Continuing operations (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment profit/
(loss) represents the profit earned/(loss suffered) from each
segment without allocation of other income, operating
expenses, other gains or losses, impairment loss recognised
on trade and other receivables and loan receivables and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets include all tangible and intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investment
property, deposit paid for acquisition of an associate, equity
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, loan
receivables, unallocated bank balances and cash and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include provisions and
trade and other payables attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly by
the segments.

=P

6. K& E @

7 2B W 58 % SR AR ()

FHEZERE(E)

RED NG BOREGA MR E
BPTt A KB & AR - HEEF,
(BB R D IMRIVEF, (EZEER)M
I D BB 5 M B At FEUIR MBI E
AEBEKRAFERNEMBRA - REFH
X Hplassk st - BERE - W12
BYAEBEEREEERD KRR
HETE -

THEERER

DEEBERBMBAN MEREENANR
HEE  TEEREDE  WE Bk
NEANENERE - BAFEFAEMEZE
WEHNRATA BATFEFABRSENS
BMEE  BUWER  RORBITHERNIIR
EUAREMEREE - HEHBEREEA
7 HBEYE B K 0 BE E & B I MV B BB AG B
BBANE 5 R EMERFUR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

6.

124

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

=P

& o &8 ()

"

THEEREE(E)

AT RIS BBEE S

BENRBENDN -

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Segment assets PHEE
Exhibition and trade show business RENESREER 5,483,189 5,204,851
Publications and media advertising T R KBS B 5 75
business 8,129,521 617,118
Total segment assets DEEELRTE 13,612,710 5,821,969
Loan receivables R E R - 6,975,770
Deposit paid for acquisition of WiE—REE A ne ke
an associate - 16,600,000
Bank balances and cash IRITHESHRNIRE 1,407,190 9,024,422
Equity instruments at FVTOCI AT EFAEMEEREL
A T A - 1,423,467
Financial assets at FVTPL EAVFEFABRENESREE - 1,062,000
Assets related to discontinued operation #% |F4F & #5572 B E - 738,899
Unallocated assets RO EE 1,535,910 4,448,295
Consolidated assets HEBE 16,555,810 46,094,822
Segment liabilities PHEE
Exhibition and trade show business RELREIREXE 1,997,794 3,894,502
Publications and media advertising T K SRR S 2 TS
business 1,569,188 627,530
Total segment liabilities nEHBEERE 3,566,982 4,522,032
Liabilities related to discontinued BRI EER AR
operations - 5,043,629
Unallocated liabilities RAOBLBE 24,887,253 11,686,447
Consolidated liabilities meRE 28,454,235 21,252,108
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. KEHIH@E
Geographical information B ER
The Group’s continuing operations are located in AEEFBELEEBUNEBRNER -

Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external BEEARNEFRBINI R B EER
customers for continuing operations is presented based on W ER DIREE mA R B e SRt
location of delivery destination of the goods and place of FRIGEIHETT 251 -

services rendered.

Revenue external customers Non-current assets
REINEBE F = FIRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
20194 20184 20194 20184
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Continuing operations (@& ¥
Guangdong-Hong Kong- &7 8 K /& &
Macao Greater Bay
Area 20,604,683 14,785,259 3,179,302 4,382,590
Note: Non-current assets excluded those from discontinued operation, Mz : ERDEETEEZTARLELEE
financial instruments and deposit paid for acquisition of an % M TERBWEREQAE MR
associate. THEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= AN =
meEMBEHmERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE
6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Continuing operations

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total
sales of the corresponding years of the Group is as follows:

R B ()
RFEGEER

RIEEFEMERMEAREHERRER
10%MFF ST

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Customer A (Note a) ZFEA(MFEa) 4,089,800 4,195,130

Customer B (Note a) X FB(MizEa) N/A" T8 1 1,745,509

Customer C (Note a) ZFPC(MEa) 2,801,784  N/A! A"

Customer D (Note b) ZFED(Fi3Eb) 2,097,087 =
1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the 1 HE P W o 3 £ B BA AN B AR E A B AR M e

total revenue of the Group for the corresponding years

(@) Revenue from the above customers is arising from exhibition and

#10%

@ RELEEFPHKRSELBERBEREIRE

trade show business. B o
()  Revenue from the above customer is arising from publications (o) RBLMEFP&KETIRE Y REEE
and media advertising business. HE -
7. OTHER INCOME Hblr A
2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations HERSEEK
Dividend from financial assets at FVTPL K Bi% A Bzt ABZEH
TREENRE - 44,428
Interest income on loan receivables FEW B F A E A 87,000 396,000
Rental income HEUA - 62,903
Bank interest income RITH UL A 884 1,349
Sundry income MIEWA - 16,441
87,884 521,121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12 A31 B L F[E

OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 8. HttW=mKREE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Continuing operations BEREEK
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries I EKIB A R A (E58) Wk
(note 36) (Pt ££36) (220,548) 632
Loss arising on change in fair value of I AFEFFABEHNERMEE
financial assets at FVTPL N EEZFHEENEE (34,040) (539,448)
Loss on disposal of plant and S B3 R R B 1R
equipment - (64,423)
Net foreign exchange loss HNEETIRFRE (7,415) (852,144)
(262,003) (1,455,383)
FINANCE COSTS 9. BB
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Continuing operations HEREEK
Interest on bank overdrafts IRITEZHE 122,226 14,151
Interest on other borrowings HAnERFE 1,269,991 100,000
Interest on loan from a shareholder IR ERF & 16,438 =
Interest on finance lease BmERER S - 6,779
Interest on lease liabilities HEAREBENE 132,776 -
1,541,431 120,930

—ENFFR EREE (ER) SRAT 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

10. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/

10. BRBIATE1E

FAEB ISR, GIA) T3 &EBES
e s

(crediting):
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Continuing operations BFEREXER
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN BN 5 960,000 1,250,000
Equity-settled share-based payment  {& B AR AN 45 E AR5 4 U 2
expenses to consultants 574,676 3,380,927
Impairment loss recognised on loan BB E FKAER KR EE 18
receivables 1,751,533 9,627,052
Impairment loss recognised on trade ~ FtE 5 & H th U GRIBRER K
and other receivables, net BEEEFE 950,941 163,439
Impairment loss recognised on MR ERSEROREREE
refundable deposit 20,000,000 -
Depreciation of plant and equipment 2348 & R & & 838,749 961,729
Depreciation of right-of-use asset ERAREENE 1,745,185 -
Operating lease expense in respect of A EWERMKEHER L
office premises - 1,888,310
Rental expenses in respect of HHAENHERS
short-term leases 534,370 -
Staff costs BIKA
Director’s emoluments (note 13) ZF0< (FizE13) 4,928,046 3,355,874
Other staff costs HEMETRHRA
— salaries, allowances and benefits - e EEREYEA
in kind 6,841,530 5,627,980
— contributions to retirement benefits ~ — R RIEF 5 2 7%
scheme 248,879 93,946
7,090,409 5,721,926
Gross rental income from an REREMENHS WAL
investment property - (62,903)
Less: direct operating expenses B CREFEAEAHESRAZ
incurred that generated EELEELERY
rental income during the year - 19,818
- (43,085)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

1. s8R (E%)

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Continuing operations HEREER
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBMEM
- Current tax - BNERFRIE - -
— Overprovision in prior years - BEFEBRERE - (21,759)
- (21,759)
Macau Complementary Tax BPIFT SR
- Current tax - BNHARE IR 173,772 =

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%. There is no impact to the Group as the
Group does not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

M2018%F3A218 + BB AEHIB2017
FRBUEE]) (BTHR)IEFER(EHE
=) SIAFERMES - EHERR
2018F3H28HEHEEK BERE + IR
TETE - BREMNSHEMRL - &EHK
& F 3 52 & 2,000,0007% 7T Y% A B R A
8.25% - M iBiE2,000,000/% JT B s A T
E B A16.5% o TFFE TS AR H H &
B A m M A EEIR16.5%/ 8 — T X
M - AR AEB RN BT BB TR
wmA I EE AR E KR -

BiEPE AREMBECEMSTE(DE
FriSfiE]) RO EMEREAE SN - &
B B B8 2 B A R B FF B TR R B25% o

ALY 148 755 T 51 O 47 M i 21 AR
B A12%HH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

130

The income tax expense/(credit) for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before taxation per consolidated

FAMGEHMA (E5R)
il 2 T UK 25 5% P 51 BR A BT S 1B 2 ST R 0

1. BB (E&) @)

el

PN

freiEam R E

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ™
as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Continuing operations HEREER
Loss before taxation B AT 1R (39,502,835)  (34,369,848)
Tax credit at the Hong Kong Profits BEBFBIHEA6.5%(20184F :
Tax rate at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 16.5%) 5T HE TR IBE % (6,532,818) (5,671,025)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible — FiatE &8 & Al H1E B 2 A9
for tax purpose W 4,562,348 1,496,398
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FLatE i 1E 2 BERF U A K
purpose M2 (76,738) (191,706)
Effect of different tax rates of REAMEEERESENHBA A
subsidiaries operating in other RN RS2
jurisdiction (177,665) -
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not  KERGETIHIBBIEOHRIETE
recognised 2,797,645 4,366,333
Tax reduction TIER (399,000) =
Overprovision in prior years BEFERNBRERE - (21,759)
Income tax expense/(credit) FIsBiAX(ER) 173,772 (21,759)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has

RI|EIR - AEEES A #H AR 0%

estimated unused tax losses of HK$83,114,973 (2018: ME Gt R BT TEE1883,114,9738 7T

HK$72,049,776) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax loss and impairment loss recognised in respect
loan and other receivables due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
at 31 December 2018 are losses of HK$5,890,227 that will

expire before 2023. Other losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a share purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of its entire 51%
equity interest in Qihui Group (International) Limited and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Qihui Group”),
which carried out the Group’s mobile app business. The
disposal was completed in 2019.

The loss for the period from the discontinued mobile
app business is set out below. The comparative figures
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income have been restated to re-present
the mobile app business as a discontinued operation.

12. RIEKE XK

REZ2019F12A31HILFE - A&EE
HBVE=AIYBERRE WHEH
REES B (B BR AR RENB AR
(B[ RRIE & B ) (oI AR ER REEA
FERER) 2 22051 %A - HERR2019
FIER ©

BRIERERDEAREARHNHAEE
FIT - RiFEEaREMEE SR
RHLERBFORLES - UBHZIIRED
FERREAER DR IR E X -

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT P TT
Loss from mobile app business for B/ FNERSERRAXY
the period/year Ei1E (30,910) (5,493,930)
Gain on disposal of mobile app HEREEAEXNFEF KR
business 321,420 1,161,214
Profit/(loss) for the period/year B FRER, (EE) 290,510 (4,332,716)
Profit/(loss) for the period/year FEMGERF R F,
attributable to: (E18) -
- Owners of the Company . N/NCIEZ PN 305,656 (2,965,817)
- Non-controlling interest - JEIERRAE RS (15,146) (1,366,899)
290,510 (4,332,716)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H L FE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12, AR EK (A
Loss from mobile app business for the period/year, which Bt AGABEEREMEAKERAE,
have been included in the consolidated statement of profit FRNARDEAEAEBEEBNOT ¢

or loss and other comprehensive income, were as follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Revenue Wz - 2,214,535
Cost of sales SHEK A - (1,957,365)
Other income (Note) H b g A GEE) - 158,857
Operating expense KRS (30,910) (4,966,786)
Other gain or losses H Y ss sk B 18 - (71,750)
Impairment loss recognised on trade i & 5 UGB R AR EEE
receivables - (871,421)
Loss before tax BRELRIEE (30,910) (5,493,930)
Income tax expense FRS iR 2 - -
Loss for the period/year B,/ FREE (30,910) (5,493,930)
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount represents Bzt : B Z2018F12A31BLLEFE @ Z&EA
incentives by the local PRC authorities to the Group for engaging R B M 77 M A B A S B 2 B = B TS
in high technology business. ZANER B 35 e 2R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. RIEREXEK R
Loss for the period/year from discontinued operation has RIS ETSHE, FREBETEMNBRT
been arrived at after charging: 5| & IBZREH
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Depreciation of plant and equipment BN EITE 2,454 17,292
Operating lease expense in respect of PWAEWHENKELHEM
office premises - 210,216
Employee benefits expense: BERAMMAX :
- salaries, allowances and benefitsin =~ — ¥& ~ R &
kind EYEF = 1,089,111
- contributions to retirement benefits ~ — RIREFIET &I 7%
scheme - 121,023
- 1,210,134
During the year ended 31 December 2019, mobile app HZE2019F12A31HIEFE * mBER
business contributed HK$188,730 net cash inflow (2018: BAEBRALEELERERNETRKI

HK$2,541,415 net cash inflow) to the Group’s operating
cash flows and HK$92,620 net cash outflow (2018: nil) to
the Group’s investing cash flows. No financing cash flow
was derived from mobile app business for both years.

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
Qihui Group at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

EMAFEE188,730/8 L (20184 : &
MAFEE2,641,415870) M BAREBIKE
Be&ma®RIBe R F5892,6208 T

(20184 : &) - MEAFEHE R ERE
AEBEENMERESRE -

RREEENHEARNEENBEZKRE
{ERER & B 75 R P RE 36T EE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EEM2

HZE2019F M 2018F 12 A31H ILFER
BERTREAZEMS 0T

The emoluments of director and the chief executive for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019

HZ2019F12831ALEE
Contributions  Equity-settled
Salaries to retirement share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expenses Total
ek RIKER REGE
e HiEw #e dEMR ROGREX &%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors HTEE
Tang Yau Sing* HEE - 2,993,336 - 16,000 - 3,009,336
Wong Siu Hung, Patrick’ &> - 673,333 - 11,500 - 684,833
Hung Yuen Kin® AR fiEe - 128,979 41,748 2,087 - 172,814
Li Ka Yee Daphne? @ - 148,843 66,680 - - 215523
Non-executive director F#TES
Chen Xiao® Fx o 11,785 - - - - 11,785
Lui Man Wah1' B3 62,903 - - - - 62,903
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Wen Kai® R 100,000 - - - 17,245 117,245
Tsang Zee Ho Paul? e 223,600 - - - 49,870 273,470
Tse Chi Wai® EIRRES 115,000 - - - 17,245 132,245
Wang Yan' T 67,333 - - - - 67,333
Lau Fai Lawrence'" EE 67,333 - - - - 67,333
Wong Chi Ling™ TR 37,742 - - - - 37,742
Wong Ling Yan Philip? ~ E&EE ™ 37,742 - - - - 37,742
Lee Man Yeung" B E 37,742 - - - - 37,742
Total emoluments ame 761,180 3,944,491 108,428 29,587 84,360 4,928,046
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e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13. EEME @)

Year ended 31 December 2018

BZE2018F12R31ALEE
Contributions Equity-settled
Salaries to retirement share-based
and other benefit payment
Fees benefits Bonus scheme expenses Total
ek RIRREN BRiEEE
e HtfEd #e SRS ROEFFEX agt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Executive directors HITEZE
Tang Yau Sing* HEE - 1,619,419 - 18,000 - 1,637,419
Mak Wai Kit' EERN - 198,630 - 4,500 - 208,130
Law Shiu Wai' BNE - 80,649 - 3,000 - 83,649
Non-executive director F#H{TES
Liu Kwong Chi, Nelson? ~ BE &2 30,000 - - - - 30,000
Independent non- BUKHTES
executive directors
Wen Kai® R 225,161 - - - 193,795 418,956
Tsang Zee Ho Paul® ZERC 255,065 - - - 193,795 448,860
Tse Chi Wa® s 255,065 - - - 193,795 448,860
Tsang Ho Ka Eugeng®  &55° 25,000 = = = = 25,000
Wong Fei Tat? EfE 30,000 - - - - 30,000
Pang Siu Yin® ZEE® 30,000 - - - - 30,000
Total emoluments BEs 850,291 1,898,698 - 25,500 581,385 3,355,874

Resigned as executive directors on 2 March 2018.

Resigned as non-executive director on 2 March 2018.

Resigned as independent non-executive directors on 2 March
2018.

Resigned as executive director on 6 November 2019.
Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 24
January 2018 and resigned on 31 May 2019.

Appointed as independent non-executive director on 24 January
2018 and resigned on 6 November 2019.

Appointed as executive director on 15 April 2019 and resigned
on 6 November 2019.

Appointed as executive directors on 16 October 2019.
Appointed as non-executive director on 15 April 2019 and
resigned on 20 May 2019.

Appointed as non-executive director on 16 October 2019.
Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 15 April
2019 and resigned on 6 November 2019.

Appointed as independent non-executive directors on 16
October 2019.

—NFFHR ZREE (ER) ARAF

R2018F3 B2 BHIITES -
R2018F3 A28 FHEIEMITES -
MR2018F3 A2 B B I IEMITE S -

R2019F11 A6 HBHIHITES -
R2018F1 A24B EZE BB IERITE
FWR2019F5 31 HEHT -
R2018F1 248 BRI AB L IEHITE
EIWH2019F11 A6HBHT -
R2019F 4 A15B EZEARTESIR
2019511 A6 H BT °

R2019F10A 16 B EZ T AMITES -
MR2019F 4 A5 EZEAERITES T
R201945 820 H BT ©

R2019F10 A 16 HER T AFFMITES -
R2019F4 158 BRI AB L IERITE
EIWH2019F11 A6HBHT -

R2019F 1016 B EZE BB IENTE
$ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13. EEMEL @)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were EXFTRATES M RBEE RN AR
for their services in connection with the management of the RAEEEREHRBER - EXFR
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive FRTEERBIUINTES SRR
directors’ and independent non-executive directors’ EREZARNBEEREER -
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the independent HZE2018F12A31HLEFE - B IEH
non-executive directors were granted share options, in TEEHHAASERHEORBEEAR
respect of their services to the Group under the share AR B RT IR T iE A - BEARAERT
option scheme of the Company. Details of the share option EIFF BN RS SRR MIFEST ©
scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no amount B E2019F 12318 ILEFE - #1#& (2018
(2018: nil) was paid or payable by the Group to the directors F B BASERNESHMFT14ME R
or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 14 BERmPB AT ER — XA ENRIE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as TERESIMMAREE S IIAREE & 112
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement BB mE - NMEFE  SMIEEEW
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any EH A B WNEEAME T -
emoluments for the both years.
14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14. IEESHESR
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the FRNASERAGRHEETRBIEMBE
year included two (2018: three) directors, details of whose E(2018%F : =ZFEF) ' AFMERNERE
remuneration are set out in note 13 to the consolidated MBREMFISTEE - FAKRT =2
financial statements. Details of the remuneration for the year (2018F : MA )&= # E B (BLIEAR A A
of the remaining three (2018: two) highest paid employees BEMIFTERAR)OFHFMFBOT
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company are as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e kEMmEF 1,790,855 962,667
Discretionary bonuses EIBIEAT 152,500 =
Contributions to retirement benefits RIRAEFGT B B3R
scheme 51,000 24,000
1,994,355 986,667
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12 A31 B L F[E

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of highest paid employee who are not directors

14. T BRESHFEEHE)

N FATREML FESNRHIE

whose remuneration fell within the following bands B A :
2019 2018
20194 20184
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEEE EE%H
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 3 2
LOSS PER SHARE 15. BREE
Continuing operations BEKEEK
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share for KARHEANEERESCEEBNETRE
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the RARESEBERTIIRBUTEEHE -
Company is based on the following data:
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss for the year attributable to owners ZAQ &R A F R EGEE
of the Company (39,206,651) (34,497,905)
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
(restated)
(B E5)
Number of ordinary shares ZEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FIAGT B FALEA 2 58 E 181
shares for the purposes of basic and AR N8
diluted loss per share 432,000,000 432,000,000
—E-NFF ERER (ER) BRAF 137
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138

15. LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 15. BREE@®
Continuing operations (Continued) FERSEEL(E)

The calculation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
as they had an anti-dilutive effect to the basic loss per
share from continuing operations for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue for the years ended 31 December 2018 have been
retrospectively adjusted for the share consolidation of the
ordinary shares of the Company that was affected on 20
February 2019 (note 34).

Continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

EEREEEREBETEBRITELRAR
Tﬂiﬂ@mﬁﬁﬂxﬁé THERFEEHEZE
2019 N 2018F 12 A31H I FEHEK
BEBHNESREABBEARBEVE -

HE2018F12A31BH It FECRITER
A ANAE 82 5201952 A20 R X/ &
AAREBBRORGE FERPAR M
5F34) °

FERRILREXEY

RRAHEAAEBEERERN N EGERT)
BTN

2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss for the year attributable to owners N2 &1 %A A JE(E F A &8
of the Company (38,900,995) (37,463,722)
The denominators used were the same as those set out Fr AR BT B il a3 B S & TS /Y

above for the continuing operations

EIRAER o

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019



15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12 A31 B L F[E

LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 15. SREE@®
Discontinued operation BIEREER
The earnings/(loss) per share for discontinued operation RIECEEBHERAF,(BE)WOT :
was as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK cents HK cents
A A
(restated)
(& E7)
Basic AR 0.07 (0.69)
The calculation of the earnings/(loss) per share for the RIEEEEBNERAER, (BBIRAT
discontinued operation was based on: BEREHE
2019 2018
201945 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Profit/(loss) for discontinued operation AR &1#EA A JBAG 4R | AL &
attributable to owners of the EXmH, (E518)
Company 305,656 (2,965,817)
DIVIDENDS 16. R E
The directors do not recommend the payment of any final EZTEZRMEZ2019F12A831H 1k
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil). FEMRPRKE(20184F © ) -
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17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. BEW R ER1E
Furniture
Leasehold Office Motor and
improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
HEEE BLERE AE BAREE &t
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Cost B
At 1 January 2018 R2018%F1 A1H 688,460 626,593 638,000 487,856 2,440,909
Additions during the year FNRE 837,761 405,577 480,248 830,823 2,554,409
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—RHB AR

(note 35) (P+7E35) 314,047 50,457 342,510 46,015 753,029
Disposal HE - - (980,510 - (980,510)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HNBAR

(note 36) (F35E36) = (330,150) = = (330,150)
Exchange alignment [E 5 A% - 375 - (34,001) (33,626)
At 31 December 2018and  M2018512H318 &

1 January 2019 2019F1A1A8 1,840,268 752,852 480,248 1,330,693 4,404,061
Additions during the year FRNRE = 91,245 = = 91,245
Written off i (688,460) - - - (688,460)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR

(note 36) (F37£36) (837,760) (62,424) - (104,402)  (1,004,586)
At 31 December 2019 MW2019%12H31H 314,048 781,673 480,248 1,226,291 2,802,260
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. BWKRREE)

Furniture
Leasehold Office Motor and
improvements  equipment vehicles fixtures Total
HERE BLERE AE BAREE CH
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Accumulated depreciation R TERFE
and impairment
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 373,429 356,614 76,473 194,114 1,000,630
Charge for the year FREE 491,378 129,529 204,403 153,711 979,021
Eliminated on disposal ! R 4 - = (202,655) = (202,655)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HRBAR
(note 36) (B 7E36) - (67,897) = = (67,897)
Exchange alignment B % % - 28,893 = (9,305) 19,588
At 31 December 2018and  M2018512H31H
1 January 2019 2019%1A18 864,807 447,139 78,221 338,520 1,728,687
Charge for the year FRBE 317,412 154,030 158,213 211,548 841,203
Written off G| (688,460) = = = (688,460)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAE
(note 36) (P+7E36) (381,976) (46,948) = (100,402)  (529,326)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12831H 111,783 554,221 236,434 449,666 1,352,104
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A31H 202,265 227,452 243,814 776,625 1,450,156
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 124318 975,461 305,713 402,027 992,173 2,675,374

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated
on its cost less their residual value on a straight-line basis at
the following rates per annum:

bt SR N R TR B R T B R LARCAR
EHRE  NEREHERE

Leasehold improvement 33.33% HEEE 33.33%
Furniture and fixtures 20% ERREE 20%
Office equipment 20% I NE L 20%
Motor vehicle 20% E 20%

—NFFHR ZREE (ER) ARAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EHAEEE
Office
premises
L NEL Y ES
HK$
BIT
As at 1 January 2019 A2019F181H
Carrying amount FREE 4,181,278
As at 31 December 2019 #2019 12H831H
Carrying amount FREE -
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12A31A L FE
Depreciation charge TEER (1,745,185)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) & —fE M B 2~ 7] (i 7£36) (2,436,093)
Expense relating to short-term leases and other B35 HATH & & F HAfE 91 1A fE BB &S
leases with lease terms end within 12 months B RS 3RE X B 1658 B Bi#E 1218 B
of the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 NERNEMHEESRENAY 534,370
Total cash outflow for leases HERe R &R (2,064,595)
19. GOODWILL 19. &
HK$
BIT
Cost and carrying values RAREREE
At 1 January 2018 M20184%1 A1H -
Acquisition of a business (note 35) U s 2 75 (B9 3E35) 1,399,146
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 and  R2018%12H31H - 2019F181H K
31 December 2019 20194 12A31H 1,399,146
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill EEAFERBENRNFBEREE B EwE
are disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial BsF2139 E -
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS . B EE
Club
membership
B esE
HKS
BT
Cost and carrying values RAREREE
At 1 January 2018 M2018%1 A1H -
Acquisition g 330,000
At 31 December 2018, 1 January 2019 and  72018%12H31H : 20191818 K
31 December 2019 20194128 31H 330,000

The club membership has indefinite useful life and is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The
fair value of club membership is higher than the carrying
amount.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill as set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statement, the
balance of goodwill has been allocated to CGU of exhibition
and trade show business.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors of
the Company determine that there is no impairment loss on
goodwill (2018: nil).

The recoverable amount of the exhibition and trade show
CGU as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. The
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and discount rate of 15.0% (2018: 15.6%). Cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 2.5% (2018: 2.5%) growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth forecast and does
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for relevant
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such
estimation is based on management’s expectations for the
market development.

21.

—NFFH BHEE

RLEE SR ERFHER - ZAAREMA
ZETREEER - AERERATES
REREE -

BB R AR

shE B R ER A (BN 4R 6 M ISR M aE
19mME  AEEHREIEERENES
REXBNRSELEN -

HZEC019F12A31BILFE - ARFE
ECETTERERERIE(2018%F
) o

RENBEIREEKHNRSEEEMRN
20194 K 2018F 12 A31 HA Al Y [0 & 58
EREBEFERAEBEFEET - 2t EKA
IR RETER T AE IR 8 FT it M ES
FHIR RITIR R15.0% B KTEE (2018
F :15.6%) - BBBSFHNR S REMFH
B E2.5% K RHE B (20184 : 2.5%) °

SEREXRTGENERITRIERER - A1
Eiﬂ*ﬁ?@”%fﬂ’]?iﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁw ERE

B ENEMEEREIERFEEEHER
%ﬂ—?—Eﬁfﬁimu}\/mut}jz1ﬁu‘|‘ﬁﬁa 44?!_
AT DEREEEHMSERNEHE
H oo
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H L FE

21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 21. BERENR @)
(Continued)
The management believes that any reasonable possible ERERE  ANZEBRIERNEMEGEY
change in any of the these assumptions would not cause RIS YReEAEMMREZ
the aggregate carrying amount to CGU to exceed aggregate ERARTELSMHA WO -
recoverable amount of CGU.
22. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 22. BAVEFARMEEKENRE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME IH
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Unlisted securities JELETRES - 1,423,467
The above unlisted securities represent the Group’s equity LatdE EM B HIEAREEMNSNC Limited
interest in SNC Limited (“SNC”), a company incorporated in ([SNCHHIBR AR @ Z A RRHSHEE
the Cayman Islands. The Group hold 9.09% equity interest AL o AEBEFABSNC 9.09%H A%
in SNC. SNC is engaged in digital asset management, AiEs - SNCERBREHTEEESE -
exchange, advisory and related business in Hong Kong. R - BAMBEBES - SNCIEREBZE
SNC was acquired as consideration for a disposal of a 2018F12A31ALFEHENB AR
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2018, REMBA - AFBEHNRHIFTESS ©
details of which are set out in note 35.
Details of the fair value measurements are disclosed in note NEEFEFBREE M BHREM 41
41 to the consolidated financial statements. B o
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. BAVFEFABENEHMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
201945 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong &8 LT IRAE S - 1,062,000
144 WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24, BWER
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT 7B TT
Fixed-rate loan receivables EREKER
Within one year —F R - 16,602,822
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEREE - (9,627,052)
- 6,975,770
Included in loan receivables as at 31 December 2018 were R2018F12A31A RN THUE =74
two loans with a principal amount of HK$5,000,000 (“Loan R E 5 BB & AR £ %8 55,000,000/
A”) and RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,602,822) T(TEFHA] kA RE10,000,0007T (HEE
(“Loan B”), respectively, advanced to independent third 711,602,822 L) ([ERBHMEE
parties, with details as follows: oSBT
(1) In respect of Loan A, the amount carried interest at (1) RERATMES  EESBEULANE
1% per month and is repayable on 24 February 2019. 1%:T 8+ BZER2019F2 A24R18
During the year ended 31 December 2019, it has B o HE2019F12A31ALFE -
come to the notice of the Group that the cheque in AEBEZTEINERANETEERBZ
the amount of HK$5,350,000 drawn by the borrower wm ARBREREENERARERF
in favour of the Group for the full settlement of Loan B 25,350,000 LI IES - B
A and the interest accrued was dishonoured. Loan A HARFIBEEZBEREE2019F12
and the interest accrued were subsequently settled in AB1BIEFEZEKE -

full during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

146

@

In respect of Loan B, it originally carried interest at 4%
per month and was repayable in May 2018. Following
a supplementary agreement entered with the borrower
(the “Borrower”), the terms of Loan B was revised to
interest bearing at 1% per month and repayable in
May 2019. Loan B is secured by a pledge of the entire
share capital in an entity (the “Entity”) wholly owned by
the Borrower. Loan B was advanced to the Borrower
for the purpose to provide financial assistance to the
Entity to acquire a 10% interest in a business engaged
in lottery related business in the Mainland China (the
“Target Business”). As at date of the consolidated
financial statements, the Entity has not yet acquired
the 10% interest in the Target Business. However, the
Entity has advanced a convertible loan of the same
amount due on the same date as Loan B to the Target
Business (“Loan C”). Loan C may be convertible at
the option of the Entity to acquire 10% interest in the
Target Business. On 12 March 2019, the Group, the
Entity, the Borrower and the Target Business entered
into an agreement, whereby repayment at the maturity
date by the Target Business on Loan C will be directly
paid to the Group as the repayment of Loan B. The
management has assessed Loan B for expected
credit losses and has determined that Loan B was
credit impaired and has recognised an impairment loss
of HK$9,627,052 for the year ended 31 December
2018. The impairment loss was determined based on
the financial position of the Target Business as at 31
December 2018. No interest income was recognised
on Loan B during the year ended 31 December 2018.

A further impairment loss of HK$1,751,533 was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019
as the Group has determined that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery in relation of Loan B.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivables
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are
set out in note 41.

24, ERE R (&)

@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25. E5 RHEMEWRIE
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 3,179,701 4,281,899
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (158,408) (1,922,490)
3,021,293 2,359,409
Deposits e 1,679,200 17,556,088
Rental deposits Heke 82,735 653,339
Prepayment AT RIR 127,660 326,689
Interest receivables RIS F B, - 263,000
Other receivables H b W GRIA 3,854,888 384,029

8,765,776 21,542,554
Less: deposits paid for acquisition of  J& . WEEFIRRIERBIEEE T

an associate shown under —fAEE A RIMENIES

non-current assets (note) (B =E) - (16,600,000)
rental deposits shown under FIRRIEMBIEEIR T /Y

non-current assets Heke - (570,604)

8,765,776 4,371,950
Note: At 31 December 2018, the amount of HK$16,600,000 MIE - 72018123318 + £ 16,600,000/

represents the deposit paid for acquisition of indirect equity TLAEBKR2018F 12 A12B F A LI
interest in Zhongti Times (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd.* (3 82 BREFROGERBEERAR (R
R AL R B AR A 7)) (“Zhongti”) based on the contract signed MEZEREMEZANZES - AEEREZE
on 12 December 2018. The Group further paid HK$3,400,000 to 2019F12A31A L FEE—FTRARBL
Zhongti during the year ended 31 December 2019. 113,400,000 7T, °
On 25 March 2019, the Group entered into a revised agreement MR2019F3A25H » AEBET LIS #
to acquire 15% indirect equity interest in Zhongti. On the same EAWE R BB 15% M EERE - RFEA -
date, previous agreement and supplementary agreements RIEEE RIS SR AT R R o
which were entered with the vendor were terminated. Zhongti PRIERFFLES G L0E IR
is principally engaged in online advertising, online gaming and Fa  ERERAREENAEREE -
entertainment platform specialising in the development and I BB #8 LAIR £21,000,00078 JT 4505
operation of boutique internet games. The consideration for H 120,000,000 7T B RS HE © 7T
the acquisition would be settled in cash of HK$21,000,000, of g - BEBIIEBRE QAR AEEER
which HK$20,000,000 have be offset by the deposit paid. On AAEERBERBELEEATE - £E7]
completion, Zhongti would be accounted for as an associate, as %R 2019F5 431 BRRK ©

in the opinion of the management the Group will have significant
influence over Zhongti. The revised agreement was lapsed on 31
May 2019.

* For identification purpose only
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Based on the announcement of the Company dated 19 July
2019, Zhongti proposed a repayment schedule to repay the
total deposit paid by the Group of HK$20,000,000 (“Deposit A”),
being 50% of the Deposit A would be settled before the end of
September 2019 and the remaining 50% of the Deposit A would
be settled before the end of 2019. At 31 December 2019 and up
to the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, the entire
amount of the Deposit A remained unsettled. The directors of
the Company consider that the Deposit A is irrecoverable and
impairment loss of HK$20,000,000 has been recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group provided customers with credit period ranging
from 0 to 90 days from the date on which invoice was
issued. The credit terms of each customer of the Group
were determined by the Group’s sales team and were
subject to review and approval of the Group’s management
based on the customers’ payment history, transaction
volume and length of business relationship with the Group.

All outstanding trade receivables balances were being
reviewed by the Group’s sales department on a regular
basis to ensure that any overdue receivable was promptly
monitored and appropriate collection actions were taken.
The Group’s sales department would follow up on the
collections and the Group’s accounting department would
monitor the progress of collection. For those material long
outstanding balances, legal actions would be taken for debt
collection. During the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018, no legal actions were taken by the Group for debt
collection.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables (net
of allowance for credit losses) at the end of the reporting
period presented based on the overdue days:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE2019F 12 A31H L FE

25. B 5 & Hith B WRKTE ()

BsE © ()

BIEARQNT B A2019F7 A19BH A
4 REERY - IEEEEINEEAEE
2% 4 485820,000,00058 7T (R EA]) -
BNZ & AHI50% #5572 2019F9 B X A 4575
MZEAB T H50%# 720194 F KAl
45 - R2019F 12 A31H R EEHER
EEEHZE2019F12A31HIEFENGE
PHBHERZA  REAN LR AL
B ANBIEERBRSATAYRE » I
REE2019F 12831 H It FE B BRI
{& E5820,000,0005 7T, ©

AEBERATFRMEARMOER A HERO
EO0EMEEN - AEEEREPHNIE
EHRARENHEBRRERE - XARFA
SEEEERBEEPHNNRLE X558
NEREERBBENREERN ML
JAMEE -

FIEREZE SR IBERENEEH
EEE BT - DA IR BE AR a7 %80 HA B R
THETT R EE R M REUEE WGRTTE) - A
EEHENBERERRBR  MAEES
A S ERINGGEE - MREEARER
BEEEHRT S @ NEERBERBUARITE
BUETRS - MEIZ20194F 2018412 A
S1RLEEE  AEBEBMEHNEMERE
ITEBIET o

REBHBHZIHE S RKIE(HRKRE
EEERB) RNBRSHRNKRR TN
o

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Current Bl ER 2,784,938 1,831,416
1-30 days 1-30H 124,900 190,000
31-90 days 31-90H 50,395 119,993
Over 90 days #B3@90H 61,060 218,000
3,021,293 2,359,409
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. & 5 & H {th F& It 518 ()
Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are ¥R B HRm HR B AR E B 5 R EHREE
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$236,355 BRERENIEEEFHEKKNEBREREK
(31 December 2018: HK$527,993) which are past due as FNTEBR {8 236,355/% 70 (20184 12 A 31
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided H :527,993%7T) - AEBWERHEFZE
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral LR o
over these balances.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has HK$61,060 2019 12H318 - AEEHE BB
(2018: HK$218,000) of trade receivables past due over 90 BIORBERBEHRE FFEUWFKIEGT,060
days but not impaired. The Group does not consider such 7B 70(20184F : 218,000 7T) ~ AR KH]
balances are defaulted due to long and on-going business LIFENEBBER ZEEFHRETER
relationship, good repayment record and good credit quality RHREERFEEEER  HAKBYTRA
from these customers. ZERERBEY o
Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related B EE RRVER E 5 EUGRIR % 4
to a number of independent customers that have a good AEEERTAECHNBITFEER -
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, BEBALE ERERREEFEEL R
the management believes that no impairment allowance WRERESE mMAERGHRDERATE
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not U E - HUt BRI S A RETTRIER
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances o AEBW BB ZEESRSE EMER
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not an °©
hold any collateral over these balances.
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for B S RKFIENREZE2018F12A318 Lt
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 41. FERBRENGFBEHRW TS -
26. CONTRACT COSTS 26. XA
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT 7B TT
Cost to fulfill contracts in relation to BITREREIREXBENZ
exhibition and trade show business BN 869,651 =

Contract costs capitalised relate to the cost to fulfill
contracts of design and production of exhibition, trade show
events and advertisement resulted in customers entering
contracts for the Group’s design and production which are
still under process at the end of the reporting date. There
was no impairment on the contract cost during the year.

AEFRARER RBEMFILNAH
RifE BMRIDEETT  MEERMEE

HWRAREITRE  BHRENMES R
REEAHIZKABR - FRLEREH
PR HERIRAE ©
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27. VITERKRRE
Bank balances IRITHERR
Bank balance comprise cash and short-term bank deposits RITEBRBERRAEURR=EAKUAR
with @ maturity period of three months period or less bearing B H RIZIRIT IS M R BB E BIRTT
prevailing market interest rates. As at 31 December 2019, F3  R2019F 128318 + FFIEN T
the interest rate range from 0.01% to 0.1%. (2018: 0.01% 0.01%%E0.1%(20184F : 0.01%ZE0.1%) °
to 0.1% per annum).
RITEX
Bank overdrafts
REE2019F N2018F12H31 B IEF
Bank overdrafts carry interest at market rates which is B RITEXEM SR (ABERE SR
overnight HIBOR or 1% per annum over the Bank’s HK$ TREF B IAEEERARITHRITAET
best lending rate of the relevant lender bank (whichever is SEEEEMEMFENE1%UAREER
higher) for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. £E))FTE °
28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EZRHMEMNTIER
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$ HK$
BT P TT
Trade payables B 5N IR 1,294,582 1,150,866
Other payables H At & /IR 31,155 2,151,224
Accrued expenses (Note) et & A (D) 5,795,443 4,273,754
7,121,180 7,575,844
Note: Accruals mainly consist of accrued staff costs and accrued M BT ERAETERRERETE IR ARETSE
professional fee. XEH -
All of the trade payables are expected to be settled within TEEMBE B S EMNFIERR —FREEK
one year or are repayable on demand. REREE -
During the year, the credit period granted by the suppliers HEERFARTHEESL KN TF0E
are generally ranging from 0 to 60 days (2018: 0 to 120 60H (20184 : 0£120R) °
days).
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

29.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
end of the reporting period presented based on the invoice

28. E5 R H AN IR (8

AT RREZAR2IINE Z A FIER

HERRNRERDMN

dates:
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0—-60 days 0-60H 1,038,217 817,285
61-90 days 61-90H 256,365 149,050
Over 90 days B0 H - 184,531
1,294,582 1,150,866
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 9. ENEE
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Receipt in advance for mobile app TEBORE E AR IR
development - 550,785
Receipt in advance for exhibition and ~ FBEWRENZE 5REEIEE FA
trade show project 536,793 -
Receipt in advance for advertisement 8 Ut & & AR 1 2B
service 622,490 -
1,159,283 550,785
When the Group receives a deposit at the acceptance of EAEBERERERESREEE R

exhibition and trade show project, mobile app development
project and advertisement contracts, this will give rise
to contract liabilities at the start of the contract until the
revenue is recognised.

The entire amount of contract liabilities for as at 31
December 2018 was derecognised during the year ended
31 December 2019 upon disposal of the Qihui Group.

e AR FIIE A RES A K IR
S BRANBIBBEL S HEEEEK
R -

R2018F12A3THMAKNEBERZHEER
BEZE2019F12A3 B ILFEHERMES
BRI FERR
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30.

31.

32.

33.

152

OTHER BORROWING 30. HffER
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unsecured other borrowing AR IR E A B X 10,000,000 10,000,000

At 31 December 2019, other borrowing included an amount
of HK$10,000,000 (2018: HK$10,000,000) advanced from
an independent third party. The borrowing carries fixed
interest rate at 12% per annum, and is repayable on 9 June
2019. On 22 March 2019, the lender has agreed to extend
the maturity date of the borrowing to 9 June 2020.

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER

At 31 December 2019, an amount of HK$10,000,000 (2018:
nil) advanced from a shareholder of the Company carries
fixed interest rate at 2% per annum, and is repayable in
2021.

LEASE LIABILITIES

Upon initial application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019,
lease liabilities of HK$4,181,278 was recognised. During the
current year, interest on lease liabilities of HK$132,776 was
recognised to consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
carrying amount of lease liabilities of HK$2,783,829 was
derecognised upon disposal of subsidiary (Note 36).

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest free, repayable
on demand and have been released upon disposal of a
subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2019 (note
36).

31.

32.

33.

R2019F12A831H » EMERBHE
A RIFIE10,000,000/8 7T (20184 :
10 000, OOO/%TE)EEEIﬁi%fﬁﬁﬁ
ZETIREEFNE12%: 8 - WAR
2019¢6H951§3§ EA2019¢3H22
- BERACRERERNIBRERE
2020¢6H9E| o

BREREK

MR2019F12 A31H  AREFIE10,000,000
BT (20184 « ) Y AR R B -
HEiRE BFFE2%ETE » WHEKR2021FE
E o

HERE

R2019F1 1B B X EATBUERE
AEBIF165 12 - RHEEEE4S,181,278
BIL e RAFE REREBaRTPE
mﬁi%iéﬁ?ru%wz 776/%75 ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ

Tféz iﬂﬂ&m (Bﬁ .&36)
FE A B B 1 B FE 12 AR IR IR X
ERAFELEER R RIZEREER -

MEEREE2019F12A31B IEFEH
& — KB A B 1R FE AR (i 5E36) °
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. BRAK
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the FRARQ B BRAREELNT
year are as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Authorised: EE
5,000,000,000 ordinary 5,000,000,0000% &%
shares of HK$0.02 each 0.02/8 7T & @A% (20184 :
(2018: 100,000,000,000 ordinary 100,000,000,000/% & i%
shares of HK$0.001 each) 0.001/8 T & #%) 100,000,000 100,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
432,000,000 ordinary 432,000,000% &%
shares of HK$0.02 each 0.02/8 70 @ A% (20184F -
(2018: 8,640,000,000 ordinary 8,640,000,0000% & H%
shares of HK$0.001 each) 0.001/& T E/mR) 8,640,000 8,640,000

The movements in authorised and issued share capital of

the Company during the year were as follows:

FARARDNELEE LB ETRAEENT ¢

Number of Number of Share

authorized issued Issued premium
shares shares capital account Total

EERGBHE CETRGHE EEARE  ROEER as
HK$ HK$ HK$
iy BT BT
At 1 January 2018 and 1201851718 20185

31 December 2018 12A431H 100,000,000,000 8,640,000,000 8,640,000 94,330,810 102,970,810
Share consolidation (note) RiA &G (7D (95,000,000,0000  (8,208,000,000) = = =
At 31 December 2019 12019124318 5,000,000,000 432,000,000 8,640,000 94,330,810 102,970,810

MsE @ 20192 H20H » KR FZHREMD A
Bt Bt B+ RERMEE.001B T
MEBITRRBITRARGESHAE K
FREEO0.02/8 TTHIAR ©

Note: On 20 February 2019, the Company completed the share
consolidation whereby every twenty issued and unissued existing
shares of HK$0.001 each was consolidated into one share of
HK$0.02 each.
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35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2018
to be Concepts Limited (“TBC”)

On 22 March 2018, the Group acquired 67% of the
issued share capital of to be Concepts Limited (“TBC”)
from two independent third parties for a consideration
of HK$3,015,000. This acquisition had been accounted
for using the acquisition method. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of acquisition was HK$1,399,146. TBC
is engaged in organizing exhibitions and trade shows,
which can complement the Group’s existing business and
broaden revenue sources of the Group.

35. WHBHKIE A A

REBE2018F12A31B L FE
BLLREERA A ([ BLxEE])

R2018F3H22H * AEBBEMZBILE
=HKEBLREER AR ELLLKED)
67%EBITHRA - K& //3,015,0008
TC o B UL EE(F UK B A ABR o ARIBUNER
EAREEA1,399,146/8 7T ° BH K2
REEBRELRBEIRE  MJExAKE
RIIRE XS RIAE AL B RS RR

Consideration transferred FrEZEAE
HK$
BT
Cash B& 3,015,000

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$4,290 had
been excluded from the consideration transferred and
had been recognised as an expense in the year ended 31
December 2018, within the operating expenses line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

I BEFE AR AN 4,200 T E AT E R B
FSIkR - WEREZE2018F12A31H 1t
FEAGABREIEMEZAKERPEE
X —EERARY -

REBBRKENEEREAENEER
B

HK$

BIT

Plant and equipment B 753,029
Trade and other receivables B 5 M EAth fE W IE 1,360,189
Bank balances and cash RN RS 894,221

Trade and other payables B 5 Kk E MR A (302,880)

Tax payables FERIBRIR (48,455)

Obligation under finance lease BB EAE (244,381)
2,411,723
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35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 35. BB 1 7] (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2018 REBZ2018F 128310 L FE (&)
(continued)
to be Concepts Limited (“TBC”) (continued) BLHEEBRAL ([ BLHEE) ()
Consideration transferred (Continued) FrEZE B ()
The fair value and gross contractual amounts of prepayment TET R & E A FE U A A WS B BRR A
and other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted to FERE#HESEEA1,360,1898 T ° iR
HK$1,360,189. No contractual cash flows was expected to BRI BB RERET - BT ERE
be irrecoverable under the best estimate at acquisition date. FEWEIE LR SRE ©
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEENREE :
HK$
P& TT
Consideration transferred FrigZ R E 3,015,000
Less: net assets acquired IR TR B E (2,411,723)
Add: non-controlling interests 0 FEFERR R A 795,868
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEE E R 1,399,146
Goodwill arose in the acquisition of TBC because the cost WEBL RIS EARE  RARESHKA
of the combination included a control premium. In addition, BIEEHIRE o Bho - E‘ﬁ/\ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂkﬁ
the consideration paid for the combination effectively ER EBEEEL RS @ERREER
included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected RIRMIGERERN A = m%%ﬁ o ZEMa
revenue growth and future market development of TBC. REEUINER - RESHEIL T ”/\T
These benefits were not recognised separately from uﬁkﬁlJﬁﬁ/éf%E’JﬁEu/m’iﬂ'J
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria
for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions was BZEREEEOER BRI B
expected to be deductible for tax purposes. R T LARR ©
Net cash outflow on acquisition of TBC W L R BN H 27 F 8
HK$
BT
Cash consideration paid 3R RE 3,015,000
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances O FTIEIR & RIRS S B
acquired (894,221)
2,120,779
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35.

36.

156

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018
(continued)

to be Concepts Limited (“TBC”) (continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of TBC (continued)

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
a profit of HK$453,989 attributable to TBC. Revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2018 includes HK$13,474,719
generated from TBC.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2018, total group revenue for the year would have been
HK$20,168,164 and loss for the year would have been
HK$38,728,611. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
During the year ended 31 December 2019
Qihui Group (International) Limited and its subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a share purchases agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
disposed of its entire 51% interest in Qihui Group
(International) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Qihui Group”). The disposal was completed
in 2019. The principal business and activity of the Qihui
Group was the mobile app business of the Group and the
disposal was regarded as a discontinued operation.

Consideration

35.

36.

s s B B X B ()

REE20185F12A31H L FE (&)

Bt XK BB R A 7 ([ BLRE]) (&)
WIE B Lt & &I 095 £ 7 il F AR ()

LR B FEAE 5 453,989/ T JhET A
HZE2018F12A31BILFEFE - H2
2018F 12 A31H I FER=RIEEB L
REIFT1E5RI13,474, 7198 7T ©

MU B EE D 20181 B1H MK » 8
FRNEE B A20,168,1648 7T © K
FREE 538,728,611 7T ° EEEF
EHEHRPRAR YA —EXRTMHKESE
BER2018F1 81K AEBEBE
FERIEBR R R ESE - I IERAETEAR
A4 -

HEME AT
BZE2019F12A31H L FE
HELEE EE)ERATRENB LT

REZ2019F12A31HILEE - A&EE
BB = FEI B RE - Bl A%
EHEENMESE (BB BRAFRE
BB A (FiERUIESE ) 2 2 5051%/%
B o HER2019F T - MESEMNE
EEBREDAASENRBEARERE
% R SRR AL EE SR -

RE

HK$
BT

Cash B

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMEA R (@
During the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31H L FE ()
(Continued)
Qihui Group (International) Limited and its subsidiaries BEEE (EE)ERAGRENB LA
(Continued) (&)
Consideration (Continued) 1B (4E)
HK$
BT
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed: HEEERBEDN
Plant and equipment SR 19,476
Other receivables H A FE R IR 617,797
Bank balances and cash RITEBEIR S 110,702
Amount due to a non-controlling FES — IR B A 5] JE AR A% SR 3k T8
shareholder of a subsidiary (113,953)
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b RIE (4,170,561)
Contract liabilities BHEE (566,730)
Amounts due to group companies JEANESENGIE/ O] (3,408,106)
Net liabilities disposed of HEaEFE (7,511,375)
Consideration received 2B 1
Transaction costs attributable to the disposal HEBLEZSHNRE (81,000)
Net consideration paid ERREFE (80,999)
Add: Net liabilities disposed of e EaEEE 7,511,375
Amounts due to group companies assigned ENEHETEHHNERQRIMNK
to purchaser T8 (3,408,106)
Non-controlling interests AR (3,680,574)
Reclassification of cumulative exchange REERBEFHDERAEL#EE RS
reserved to profit or loss upon disposal (20,276)
Gain on disposal & W s 321,420
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEENR ML FE -
Net cash consideration paid ENBEeREFE (80,999)
Bank balance and cash disposed of BHERITERKIRS (110,702)
(191,701)
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019
(Continued)

Allied Power Management Limited

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a sales and purchases agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which the Group
disposed of its entire interests in Allied Power Management
Limited (“Allied Power”). The disposal was completed in
2019. Allied Power is engaged in provision of management
service to its fellow subsidiaries.

6. HEH B2 R @

B E2019F12831 B L FE (&)

BEHEBERA A

REZ2019F12A31BHILFE - AEE
HBYE=FRIVEE WS B &
EEREERANEBER AR (EHE
B2 - HER2019F 7K - &5
EERERNHERRNBRRIREEER
%%o

Consideration &
HKS
BIT
Cash bk 465,083
HK$
BIT
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed: EHEEERBEDIT
Plant and equipment Ik N BR 455,784
Right-of-use asset EREEE 2,436,093
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A e W IR 637,182
Bank balances and cash WRITHEB LIRS 9,299
Lease liability HE&E (2,783,829)
Tax payable FE 7 18 (68,898)
685,631
Loss on disposal mEBE (220,548)
Total consideration BRE 465,083
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRESRAFRE
Cash consideration received BEUIRERE 465,083
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of B BRERITEBRKIRS (9,299)
455,784
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2018
Lucky Channel Limited

On 14 March 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
purchases agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Group disposed of its entire interests
in Lucky Channel Limited (“Lucky Channel”). The disposal
was completed on 14 March 2018. Lucky Channel is
engaged in investment property holding.

36.

BB A B (&)
B Z2018F12831H LFE
Lucky Channel Limited

20183 A 148 » AKBEBIE=F
AIVEEWSE Bt AEEEHEER
Lucky Channel Limited([ Lucky Channel])
R o BER2018F3A14H TR °
Lucky Channel{t B & ¥ £ 120% -

Consideration 1
HK$
BIT
Cash e 12,900,000
14 March
2018
201853H14H
HK$
BTT
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed: EHEEERBEDIT
Investment property wEYE 12,900,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EWGIE 9,295
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 44,164
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERFKIE (54,091)
12,899,368
Gain on disposal B W s 632
Total consideration BR(E 12,900,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENBRSMAFEE
Cash consideration received BUIR & RE 12,900,000
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of B EHERITERKIRS (44,164)
12,855,836
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018
(Continued)

Singularity Group Holdings Limited

On 31 December 2018, the Group disposed its entire
interest in Singularity Group Holdings Limited, which was
engaged in IT related business, to SNC, an independent
third party, in exchange for a 9.09% equity interest in SNC.
The consideration and net assets of Singularity Group
Holdings Limited at the date of disposal on 31 December
2018 were as follows:

6. HEH B2 R @

B E2018F12A31H L FE (&)

Singularity Group Holdings Limited

M2018F12A318 - XEBERBEILE
=73 SNCH & Singularity Group Holdings
Limited (¢ EE AR FER) 2 B s -
LAFRELSNC 9.09% A% A # 2 © Singularity
Group Holdings Limited & B Hi(2018
FI2AB)NREBRFEENT :

Consideration tE
HK$
BIT
Fair value of the shares of SNC (note) SNCR% 17 8 A F1E (M 5E) 1,423,467

Note: The fair value of the share of SNC was determined by the
directors with reference to an equity financing transaction of
SNC with an independent third party occurring near the disposal
date.

izt - SNCIRIDHI R FEHRBEBFL2ERHENG
3 B HASNCEDE L 5 = 77 #E1THI R AR

31 December

2018
2018%F12H31H
HK$
BIT
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed: EHEEERBEDIT

Plant and equipment Ik N BR A 262,253
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A W IR 10,000
Bank balances and cash WITHEBRRS 92,620
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMERFKIA (102,620)
262,253
Gain on disposal & e 1,161,214
Total consideration HBRE 1,423,467

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEAMNRSMLFERE -
Bank balance and cash disposed of BHERITEBREIRS 92,620
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23
January 2015 (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive and rewards to eligible participants including:

()  any executive or non-executive director including any
independent non-executive director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i)  any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(i) any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate management) to the
Group;

(iv) any provider of goods and/or services to the Group;
and

(v} Any other person who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group to take up
options (together, the “Participants”).

The Company is entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme does not
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the listing date on
16 February 2015. The Company may at any time refresh
such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue a
circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, with such individual and his or her close
associates (or his associates if the individual is a connected
person) abstaining from voting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company within 28 days from the date of
the offer.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the option
period after the option has been granted but, in any event,
not longer than 10 years from the date of grant. An option
shall lapse automatically and not be exercisable (to the
extent not already exercised) on the expiry of the option
period.

Options granted may be exercised at any time during the
option period and are to be settled by issuance of the
Company’s shares. The directors may at their absolute
discretion determine the period during which an option may
be exercised, such period to expire not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the option. The exercise price
is determined by the directors and shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share
on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the
share.

The Scheme will remain valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Scheme
is adopted, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Scheme shall in all other
respects remain in full force and effect and options which
are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

On 13 April 2018, 148,800,000 share options of the
Company (the “Share Options”) were granted under the
Scheme to certain directors and consultants of the Group.
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37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Share Options have an exercise price of HK$0.065 per
Share Option with an exercisable period up to 16 February
2025. 25% of the Share Options were vested immediately
at date of grant, 13 April 2018. The remaining 75% were
split evenly into three tranches and vested on 13 October
2018, 13 April 2019 and 13 October 2019.

The number of Share Options granted to certain directors
of the Company were 21,600,000 and consultants were
127,200,000. The Share Options granted to consultants
were for consultancy services rendered during 2018.
The total number of Share Options exercisable as at 31
December 2018 was 74,400,000.

All of the Share Option granted have been cancelled as at
16 October 2019.

The fair values of the Share Options were calculated using
the Binominal Option Pricing model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

Spot price HK$0.059
Exercise price $0.065 per share
Expected volatility 74.90%
Risk-free rate 1.84%

Expected dividend yield 0.00%

Expected life 6.85

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’ share prices. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-
transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The estimated fair values of the Share Options at the
date of grant are HK$4,686,600. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group recognised director’s
emoluments and consultancy fee of HK$581,385 and
HK$3,380,927, respectively, in relation to the Share
Options granted by the Company. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group recognised director’s
emoluments and consultancy fee of HK$84,360 and
HK$574,676.
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38.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The valuation was carried out by Moore Transactions
Services Limited, independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group.

At the date of grant, the exercise price of the share
options was HK$0.065. The exercise price and number of
outstanding Share Options was adjusted to HK$1.3 and
7,440,000 respectively following the share consolidation on
19 February 2019 (note 34).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly contribution of HK$1,500. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries
in the PRC are members of the state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the PRC government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits, the only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits is to make the specified contributions.

The Group’s employees who are employed by subsidiaries
in Macau are covered by a government-mandated defined
contribution plan pursuant to which a fixed amount of
retirement benefit would be determined and paid by the
Macao Government. Contributions are generally made by
both employees and employers by paying a fixed amount
on a monthly basis to the Social Security Fund Contribution
managed by the Macao Government. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits is to make
the specified contributions.

Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation.
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OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessee
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments

for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

39.

REHEERE
FEBEREEA

MR2018F 12 A31H » NEERE A
BT E RN AR R RERE N FRE
s

2018
20184
HK$
BIT

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

F_EFRF(BREEWF)

2,274,169
2,607,050

4,881,219

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises. Rentals are fixed for terms
roughly from 1 year to 2 years.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

40.

EXREEEE @

ARREBFFFFRIBEANRE - (ERU
BT — 8D EERB/EARKAKES
BRIEARENER - REESHHERE
& AEEREBIKMNERE - BITHRG
MERBRMARETHERXERREE
BB BB A AR

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Total borrowing fEsRAaEE 20,000,000 12,894,173

Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITERBR RIS (3,603,473) (10,681,511)

Net debt ERFER 16,396,527 2,212,662
(Capital deficiency)/equity attributable R A @A ARG (B AEAL)

to owners of the Company P (12,284,152) 27,464,806

Net debt to equity ratio FEERRLE N/ATiE A 8.06%

Note: Total borrowings represent other borrowing, loan from a

BieE © EEBRIEEMER - MRERRRITE

shareholder and bank overdraft. 3
41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41. €T H
Categories of financial instruments ST AEER
2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFABZNCREE - 1,062,000
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEGFAEMEEmKZE
WEemEE - 1,423,467
Financial assets at amortised cost B KA RN SR EE 12,241,589 21,894,117
Financial liabilities Ela=Ri
Amortised cost B SH R AN 21,325,737 16,310,216
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, financial assets at FVTOCI, amount due
from a former shareholder, loan receivables, trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, other borrowing, amounts due to a non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiary and bank overdrafts.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s monetary assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau
Pataca same as the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

The Group does not expect any significant currency risk
which materially affect the Group’s result of operations.

Interest rate risk

During the year, the Group was exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate other borrowing and
loan from a shareholder (see notes 30 and 31 for details of
the borrowing).

The Group is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk
which may materially affect the Group’s results of operations
in 2019 and 2018.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities listed in Hong Kong and its
unlisted instruments.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

The directors of the Company consider that the Group has
no material impact on equity price risk at 31 December
2019.

If the prices of the respective listed equity instruments
had been 20% higher/lower, the post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018 would decrease/increase by
HK$212,400 as a result of the changes in fair value of the
financial assets at FVTPL.

If the fair value per share of the unlisted equity instruments
had been 20% higher/lower, the investment reserves
as at 31 December 2018 would increase/decrease by
HK$284,693, as a result of the changes in fair value of the
equity instruments at FVTOCI.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collaterals, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In respect of trade and other receivables and loan
receivables in order to minimise risk, the management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of
its customers’ financial position and condition is performed
on each and every major customer periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. The Group does not require collateral in
respect of its financial assets.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of reporting period, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 23% (2018: 24%) of the total trade receivables of
the Company was due from the largest customer and 51%
(2018: 73%) of the total trade receivables of the Group was
due from the largest 5 customers. Taking into accounts the
creditworthiness of the customers, the credit risk measures
and the historical levels of bad debts, the directors consider
that such concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applied internal credit rating for its customers. Certain
of the Group’s trade receivables are grouped under a
provision matrix based on shared credit risk characteristics
by reference to past default experience and current past
due exposure of the debtor. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables which are assessed collectively based on
provision matrix as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

LRI A@
TRAREERRERBEE

1= B2 B2 % 6l 1B 57 A2 ()

EAAREBEERRERN—ZD » A&
EHERFEANDBEETR - AEBEH
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HRER P EEEE T oE - TRIBIEREE
FrEfRiEERR & E 5 ERFENTEHE
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12 A31 B IR BB MR i 1T R BB 5 (S -

Gross Weighted Allowance Net
carrying average for credit carrying
amount loss rate losses amount
In#EEH EE

RE#E EEE B8 8E REFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

At 31 December 2019 MR2019F 12 H31H

Trade receivables 2 5 REWGIR

Current BN &R 2,784,938 0.00% - 2,784,938
1 to 30 days past due wmHE1E=30H 124,900 0.00% - 124,900
31 to 90 days past due B HER31 =00 H 50,395 0.00% - 50,395
Over 90 days past due & HA A 3R 00 A 61,060 0.00% - 61,060
3,021,293 - 3,021,293

At 31 December 2018 MK2018F12H31H

Trade receivables 2 5 IR

Current BIHA 1,831,416 0.00% - 1,831,416
1 t0 30 days past due BHE1Z300 190,000 0.01% - 190,000
311090 days past due  #1HA31%E90A 120,062 0.06% (69) 119,993
Over 90 days past due BHIEE0H 225,398 3.28% (7,398) 218,000
2,366,376 (7,467) 2,359,409
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by management of the Group to
assess both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

In determining the ECL of the Group’s other receivables,
the management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on historical credit loss experience,
general economic conditions of the relevant industry in
which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the reporting date. Based on the result of the foregoing,
impairment loss of HK$20,800,000 was recognised during
the year ended 2019 (2018: nil).

In determining the ECL of the Group’s loan receivables, the
management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on general economic conditions of
the relevant industry in which the debtors operate, value of
any pledged assets, financial position of the debtors and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date. In the opinion
of the management, the risk of default of one of the counter
party of loan receivables is significant and accordingly, the
respective loan receivables is credit-impaired. Based on the
result of the foregoing, impairment loss of HK$1,751,533
was recognised during the year ended 2019 (2018:
HK$9,627,052).
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REKX - A i I 2w R AT AR (B 18 5
B ARAIER - NEZ2019F |FF
FE R EEE1,751,53378 7T (20184 :
9,627,052 7T) °
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41.

172

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The movement in allowance for credit loss in respect of

trade and other receivables and loan receivables during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as followings:

41.

ST A (@
TREAREEERREE @

=B R R B E TG (E)
REBE2019%F K 2018F 12 A31H ILF

B - B REMENIAREWRERNE
EBEBEESHUT

Trade receivables

E 5 EWE
Loan Other
receivable receivable
Life-time Life-time Life-time Life-time
ECL ECL ECL ECL
credit  (not-credit credit credit
impaired impaired) impaired impaired Total
Hitt el
ERER 2HEY 2H%ES ME2H
2HES FEFE fGEFE RHEE
FEF#E (KRR HREE  BEEE
FERE GEREE) BE HE CH)
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H - - 887,630 - 887,630
Impairment loss ERRARESE

recognised, net of (FBRH[E)

reversal 9,627,052 7,467 1,027,393 - 10,661,912
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 124311 9,627,052 7,467 1,915,023 - 11,649,542
Impairment loss recognised/ 2 HERR, /(@) #)

(reversed),net REBEFE 1,751,533 (7,467) 158,408 20,800,000 22,702,474
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR = - (1,975,067 - (1,975,067)
Exchange alignment [ i R 224,237 = 60,044 = 284,281
At 31 December 2019 M2019512H31H 11,602,822 - 158,408 20,800,000 32,561,230

At 31 December 2019, the Group has trade receivables
with gross amount of HK$158,408 (2018: HK$1,027,393),
loan receivables of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,602,822) (2018: RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,175,000) and other receivables of HK$20,800,000
(2018: nil) being credit impaired since the management of
the Group considered these balances are unlikely to be
recoverable or partially recoverable.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

MN2019F12A31H » KREFLE A
158,408 7T (20184F : 1,027,393/ 7T) HY
B 5 IE - AR¥10,000,0007T (48
EM11,602,822/870) (20184 : AR
10,000,0007T (#8 & 11,175,000 7T))
B FE U & 7K 12, 20,800,00058 7T (20184 -
E)NHEMERZEHBREERE  RA
EAEEERER AT AR LW E =I5
U Bl 3% & 4k 64 o

BN 5% 7719 RE BRSSP REER
TREEMENIRIT  BWRITHEKNEE
REBRAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €@ T EH@E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREREEEERBER(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk mEBELERE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and REBWMBER AT RERBR KBRS
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with BB RUARFEEMEREE - AR
any leading covenants and to ensure that it maintains HERAER® URKBEXZESREE
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed lines of K7t R AGRREE Dom 2 R R KB
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity BESTFE -
requirements in the short and longer term.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TREFMNELRETERSRE @ TIREXR
The table has been drawn up based on the earliest date at SEEFEERNROET BEHIE - &
which the Group can be required to pay. For the year ended F£2018F12A31HIEFE * WAEER
31 December 2018, it has not taken into account of the 20193 H22 R EEE R A EMLERH AL
extension of the maturity of the other borrowing agreed with BREEA - MAERAZE  AlIRRE
the lender on 22 March 2019. To the extent that interest HIRB A R RIS RAAIREHE -
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
Weighted More than
average Within 1 year Total Total
effective 1yearor but within undiscounted carrying
rate on demand 5years cash flows amount
I 1R EB1E REER
BERA= RRER (EINRF RERELHE IREAE
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
2019 20195
Non-derivative FITESHEAE
financial liabilities
Trade and payables & 5 M JE A - 1,309,299 16,438 1,325,737 1,325,737
Other borrowings H g3 12 10,600,000 - 10,600,000 10,000,000
Loan from a e
shareholder 2 - 10,233,562 10,233,562 10,000,000
Total Shr 11,909,299 10,250,000 22,159,299 21,325,737

—NFFHR ZREE (ER) ARAF
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

174

Financial risk management objectives and policies

41. ERMIAE@®

TRAREERRERBEE

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) VbAoA )
Weighted
average Within Total Total
effective 1 yearor undiscounted carrying
rate on demand cash flows amount
5 15K RELER
FBRA= FRERK REMBATE FREAE
% HK$ HK$ HK$
P& TT BIT 7B TT
2018 2018
Non-derivative financial fTE£ SR E &
liabilities
Trade payables and other & 5 BB K E b
payables JETFRIR - 3,302,090 3,302,090 3,302,090
Other borrowing HMER 12 10,500,000 10,500,000 10,000,000
Amounts due to non- e —REME A A
controlling shareholder  FEYEAR AR BR FI8
of a subsidiary - 113,953 113,953 113,953
Bank overdrafts RITEX 6 2,894,173 2,894,173 2,894,173
Total &t 16,810,216 16,810,216 16,310,216
WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. Observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available; and

° Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

41.

—NFFR BMEE (BR) BRAF

LRI A@E
TRIAQNVEAE

BEEMBEEL N FEGTENFEEEH
BERBENAFE

AFEESR

TREJNIREEEH B HRELERF13
AT EEMER C=BAXFEELER
BREHR  THRAVEAEAEEZS
BMTHE REGEZEMRALBZITER
MEREHEEZEBEIEA TR HEAERE

RERE

s FBRMEE: EERE-—R2HE
RABEAH HREEXRERER
Bhis 2 ARHBRE)FE 2T
18 :

s FE_AMHE: ZRAF-_RSHAEIT
HMEF - MABE28 - BYR
ERMERTABREZ2H  THUHE
2HAEEERTSEER 22805
BZRYE: &

¢ E=RfE: RAEATUBES
B H 2 ATE -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

41.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

ST A (@

EWMITALATEEE)

BREEMBEEL N FEGTENAEEEH
EEREENAFEGE

RFEER(E)

Fair value measurements categorised into

AERNTERNATEHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-§ -t =4 At
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
0195 018F 2019 2018F 2019  018F 20195  2018%
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT B BT B BT B
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEF A BRY
~ isted equty securities - tilAEs - 1,062,000 - = - = - 1,082,000
Equity instrument at FVTOC EATEHALNZE
YatRATIA
- unlisted securities -ELmES - = - 1423467 - = - 1423467
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities

4. ERMIAE@®

EWMTALATEEE

BREEMBEEL N FEGTENAEEEH

that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEREBEHNLFEGE)
(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEER(E)
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December  Fair value Valuation techniques and
Financial assets 2019 2018  hierarchy key inputs
R20195 720185
tREE 12A31BAYE 12A31BRTE AHEEBR HEIZRIEGAYE
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL - 1,062,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active
~ listed equity securities in Hong Kong markets
BOTHEAFABRNEREE F—R AR STRR L E
- BB L TRAES
Equity instrument at FVTOCI - 1,423,467  Level 2 Recent market an equity

= unlisted securities

BAHEF AR 2 ARENRATA
- EES

financing transaction of
SNC with an independent
third party

St SNCEB V£ =T #1TH)
THRRERERHTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and 2.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018.

HZE2019F12A31HILFEE » F—4 A
F_HoEIEERS -

BREREMBEEWF LN FETENTEE
EHEEREBH A FE

M2019F12 A31H k201812 A31 B A
EEMUKRASEEKRATENSR T AR
HEEEATFETESAESR -
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42.

43.

178

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 42, ERMETHEENEBYHER

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREFASEERMEEDEENEEFT
arising from financing activities, including both cash and B OeRERERIRE2EE -  ARE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EBELANBEDAEREREBXARKRER
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows nE - WHBEAIBIEAREELE
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of ERERETEMETTNESRE -
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Obligation
under
Interest finance Other Loan froma Lease
payable lease borrowings shareholder liabilities Total
ME
EMFNE  HERE HAfR  RRER  HE2E A%
HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2018 "2018%1A1H - - - - - -
Acquisttion of a subsidiary WENBAR = 244,381 = = = 244,381
Interest expense FERY 120,930 = = = = 120,930
Financing cash flows BERERE (20,930) (244,381) 10,000,000 - - 0,734,689
At 31 December 2018 and 120185 12A31H
1 January 2019 K2019F1A1H 100,000 - 10,000,000 - - 10,100,000
Recognition of lease liabilities BAREER - - - - 41812718 4,181,278
Disposal of a subsidiary HERELA - - = - (2783829 (2,783,829)
Interest expense FERY 1,408,655 = = = 132,776 1,541,431
Financing cash flows BEBLTE (1,492,217) = - 10,000,000 (1,530,225) 6,977,558
At 31 December 2019 20195127315 16,438 - 10,000,000 10,000,000 - 20,016,438
MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. EXEKAIXS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BirE M ERERMBEEIN » NEBRE

statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of their emoluments are

disclosed in note 13.

NENTEREH TS

AEBEEEEBABRARBES -
FH M2 FIERMT FE 135 -
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44.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Mr. Lui, an ultimate shareholder and a director of the
Company, has granted an unsecured loan facility of up to
HK$40,000,000 during the available period which will expire
on 31 December 2021. The Facility bears an interest of 2%
per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an aggregate
amount of HK$10,000,000 of the Facility has been drawn
down by the Company which has been utilised to repay
the outstanding loans due and owing to independent third
parties of the Group.

PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
General information of subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of
the reporting period are set out as follows:

43.

44.

EXRBABARZ (@)

AR BREBREREERLEDR2021
F12A31BBERNATABARERS
40,000,000 LR EK IR E KB E © %R
BIRFRE2%ET 8. »

HZE2019F12A31HIEFE - AR AR
IR B M4 $£10,000,0005 7T » AE
EERNERERAEEBILIE=FHKRE

yEB S £
= E K °

TEMBE QRS

MEARN—RER

R ERROAN G T EME D RIFFIEE
HIE

Class of Proportion of Issued and
Country/place of ~ shares held/  ownership interest and fully paid
incorporation registered voting power held share capital/
Name of subsidiary or operation capital by the Company  registered capital  Principal activities
BRTR
B fiike,/ RAIRENRERER BERE/
MEARER EXER/HE  SRERES REBLH dMEx  TEXR
2019 2018
2019  20185F
% %
Allied Power Management  Hong Kong Ordinary - 100 HK$1  Provision of management service
Limited
aNEERRAA BB LEk BT REUEERE
Grand Oceans (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$1  Provision of management service
hig(EFR)ARAA &k LRk 1AL REEERK
Ocean Media (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 HK$100  Sales of magazines and provision
Limited of magazines advertising service
AR ELRARAT BB LR 10087 HERSRRHETESRE
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44. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

44. T EMBE A AFEE)

B 2 R Y — RE R ()

Class of Proportion of Issued and
Country/place of ~ shares held/  ownership interest and fully paid
incorporation registered voting power held share capital/
Name of subsidiary or operation capital by the Company  registered capital  Principal activities
BRTR
A L E e,/ FARBENEERER BrRE/
HWEARER EXER /%  EMERER RELA dMER  FEEER
2019 2018
20196 2018F
% %
Guangzhou Qihui Marketing ~ PRC Ordinary - 51 RMB200,000/  Provision of mobile application
and Planning Company RMB5,000,000 development service
Limited
BMNEESH%2 G Lak AR¥200000/ RERDERRARERS
BRAR AK%5,000,0007
TBC Hong Kong Ordinary 67 67 HK$10,000  Provision of exhibition and trade
show service
B %2 & Lak 100008 RERERESRERE
Tiance Cultural Macau Ordinary 99 - MOP100,000  Sales and distribution of
Communication Limited publications and sales of print
and online advertising space
ARXBRERLA R LAk 100,000879%  HERETHY - THERIR

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company,
which in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion of the
directors result in particulars of excessive length.

180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

44. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. T EMBE R AFEE)
(Continued)

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has BEEAREEZEREZNEZENB AT
material non-controlling interest R

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned TRINTHEBEREERERNASEEIE
subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling 2EMB RTINS -

interest:

Proportion of

ownership
interest and
Place of voting power
incorporation held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of and place of the Company non-controlling non-controlling
subsidiary business 2019 and 2018 interest interest
20195 [ 20184
YNEIESE T
o i B 3L b B BERR
MEBARIEE REXME REELH 2 EFEERE SRR it EERER
2019 2018 2019 2018
20195 20184 20195 2018%F
TBC Hong Kong 67% (603,699) 149,816 323,998 927,697

B R E B
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44. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. T EHB QT FIEE)

(Continued)

BEERFEREZNIFZENBLT
VL)

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has
material non-controlling interest (Continued)

BRAKERAE SFHERERNHER
AP BEMBEE N T - L THMBE
M2 EBAKE R RMIER S

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

TBC BLHESE
2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets mENEE 3,713,734 6,312,372
Non-current assets EMENEE 370,309 393,333
Current liabilities RBEE (3,102,231) (3,894,502)
Non-current liabilities EmEBAE - -
Equity attributable to owners of the RARHEE AE(LERE
Company 657,814 1,883,506
Non-controlling interests of TBC L R 218 FEFE AR i 2 323,998 927,697
Revenue Wz 13,106,568 13,474,719
Expenses B (14,935,959)  (13,020,730)
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive  (E518) % 5| R 2 HE Uz 4258
income (1,829,391) 453,989
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e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019F 12 A31 B L F[E

44. PARTICULAR OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. T EHB QT FIEE)

(Continued)

Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has BEEAREREZNIEZEHB LT
material non-controlling interest (Continued) 1R ()
TBC (Continued) BLEE(E)
2019 2018
201945 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of ~ ANABHEA AR (BE), &R

the Company (1,225,692) 304,173
(Loss)/profit attributable to the non- FEVEAR M PR (B 1R), = 7

controlling interest (603,699) 149,816
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive ~ F R (E518) & F &

income for the year SHEWNEREE (1,829,391) 453,989
Net cash inflow from operating activities #& & /EEFT1SIR &R AFE 3,401,129 195,594
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing $&& &8T5 4 (Rt),/

activities MAFEE (77,070) 127,604
Net cash outflow from financing BB EEMSR S ML T

activities (122,226) (3,144,381)
Net cash outflow RE ML FEE 3,201,833 (2,821,183)
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) AQXTRHBARRRE

45. X RRMBRARRBEELE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Office equipment NS 133,637 224,526
Interests in subsidiaries R B RRIMIRE 104,977 104,977
Equity instruments at fair value BAFEASAHE M2 mR S
through other comprehensive HIRAT A
income - 1,423,467
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEEBNENiZe
a business - 16,600,000
238,614 18,352,970
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WK BfT /B B 5K IE 1,104,437 10,547,690
Loan receivable JEWE K - 5,000,000
Prepayment and other receivables — FE{ 2k I8 & H fth & U 3k 18 125,691 497,476
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEEEED 1,633 8,623,240
1,231,761 24,668,406
Total assets EEHAE 1,470,375 43,021,376
EQUITY E
Capital and reserves attributable 742 F#EAE ABILEEL
to owners of the Company R f#E
Share capital & A 8,640,000 8,640,000
Reserves f# (30,997,055) 14,022,184
Total equity R (22,357,055) 22,662,184
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. XD T HMBEMRRRR HES S (&)
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) 72 E B AR R T (&)
(Continued)
2019 2018
20194 2018%F
HK$ HK$
BT 77T
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REAE
Amount due to subsidiaries AR EPNGIE S 8,950,067 7,384,392
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R E M B HIE 4,877,363 2,974,800
Other borrowings HAER 10,000,000 10,000,000

23,827,430 20,359,192

Total liabilities BEEE 23,827,430 20,359,192
Total equity and liabilities EEhEaEHEE 1,470,375 43,021,376
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE), EEFE (22,595,669) 4,309,214
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERABAEG (22,357,055) 22 662,184
Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: HAATATRERESTGEE .
Hung Yuen Kin Li Ka Yee Daphne
RER {2 £
Director Director
EFE E2

BHEE (ZR) SRAH 185

K
A
\
o
ﬁ
ﬁ
%%—
ot



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z£2019F 12 A31H L FE

(b)

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. R BB K K # 1B E (@)
MOVEMENT OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Reserve of the Company (b) ADFEFHE
Share
Share options FVTOCI Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RATE
AR
2EKE
RIGEE BRERE i RHER CEHI
HKS HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2018 M201851 /1R 94,330,810 - - (44,525,553) 49,805,257
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRABERZER T 28
expense for the year - - = (39,745,385) (39,745,385)
Recognition of equity settled BRRAEZRA TR
share-based payment - 3962312 - - 3962312
At 31 December 2018 and R2018%F12A318 K
1 January 2019 20191518 94,330,810 3,962,312 - (84,270,938) 14,022,184
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRABERZERZAH
expense for the year - - - (44,254,808) (44,254,808
Fair value loss on equity BAFEHAEGZE
instrument at FVTOCI WaEmBRATR
ATEBE = - (1,423,467 - (1,423,467
Recognition of equity-settled RRALEERO T
share-based payment - 659,036 - - 659,036
Cancellation of share options THiRBRE - (4,621,348 - 4,621,348 -
At 31 December 2019 R201912831A 94,330,810 - (1,423,467) (123,904,398) (30,997,055)

186

WINTO GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019



46.

47.

48.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL - STATEMENTS

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019512 A31H L FE

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The coronavirus outbreak since early 2020 has brought
additional uncertainties in the global macroeconomic
situation. The Group expects the event may potentially
affect the Group’s business performance in the first half
year of 2020. The degree of impact could not be reasonably
estimated at this stage. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the epidemic and assess its impact on the
financial position and operating results of the Group.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
present the results of Qihui Group as discontinued
operation, as set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019.
Under the transition methods, comparative information is
not restated. Further details of the changes in accounting
policies are disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March
2020.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBHME

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
In HK$ Syl bN 20194 20184 201745 20164 20154
(Restated)
(s E5)
Revenue ey 20,604,683 14785259 29733580 35558942 20,824,027
Loss before tax bR BB (39,592,835)  (34,369,848)  (22,677,036)  (24,529,755)  (3,650,971)
Total comprehensive expenses FR2ERXEE
for the year (41,080,749)  (38,371,106)  (17,368,199)  (27,403,636)  (5,761,648)
SUMMARY OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREBEHE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
In HK$ B TIIR 20194 2018% 20174 20164 20154
(Restated)
(s E51)
Total assets BERE 16,555,810 46,094,822 64,891,518 130,572,187 70,485,084
Total liabilities AEES 28,454,235 21,252,108 6,435,878 55,766,280 6,481,881
Net (liabilities)/assets (85 BEFE (11,898,425)  24.842,714 58455640 74,805,907 64,003,203
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